

East Bay Innovation Academy

Board Meeting

Date and Time

Wednesday September 17, 2014 at 8:00 PM PDT

Location

3400 Malcolm Ave, Oakland 94605

During this meeting we begin to turn our attention to strategic governance of the corporation. We will review updates from the leadership team and make plans for development and evolution of our Board and Board functions.

Agenda	Purpose	Presenter	Time
I. Opening Items			8:00 PM
Opening items			
A. Record Attendance and Guests		Laurie Jacobson Jones	1 m
B. Call the Meeting to Order		Laurie Jacobson Jones	1 m
C. Approve Minutes	Approve Minutes	Tali Levy	1 m
Approve minutes for Board Meeting on August 13, 201	4		
D. Approve Minutes	Approve Minutes	Tali Levy	1 m
Approve minutes for Board Meeting on August 13, 201	4		
E. Approve Minutes	Approve Minutes	Tali Levy	5 m
Approve minutes for Board Meeting on September 4, 2	014		
II. Academic Excellence			8:09 PM

Academic Excellence Agenda Stock Description

A. Innovative Instruction Report	Purpose FYI	Presenter Devin Krugman	Time 5 m
III. CEO Report			8:14 PM
CEO Support And Eval Agenda Stock Description			
A. Executive Directors Report	FYI	Alex Harp	5 m
B. Hiring Update	FYI	Alex Harp	5 m
IV. Governance			8:24 PM
A. Board Assessment	FYI	Laurie Jacobson Jones	5 m
B. Board Committees	FYI	Laurie Jacobson Jones	5 m
C. Board Retreat	Discuss	Laurie Jacobson Jones	5 m
D . CEO Goals Tracker	Discuss	Laurie Jacobson Jones	5 m
E. Board Meeting Dates - 3rd Wednesdays	FYI	Laurie Jacobson Jones	5 m
V. Facility			8:49 PM
Facility Agenda Stock Description			
A. Prop 39 Update	FYI	Rochelle Benning	5 m
VI. Finance			8:54 PM
Finance Agenda Stock Description			
A. Finance Update	FYI	Dena Koren	15 m
VII. Development			9:09 PM
Development Agenda Stock Description			
A. Fundraising Overview	Discuss	Laurie Jacobson Jones	10 m
VIII. Committee Reports			9:19 PM
A. Board Development Committee	FYI	Tom Pryor	5 m

B. Hiring Committee	Purpose FYI	Presenter Laurie Jacobson Jones	Time 5 m
IX. Other Business			9:29 PM
A. Consent Agenda	Vote	Laurie Jacobson Jones	5 m
X. Closing Items			9:34 PM
A. Adjourn Meeting	Vote		

Coversheet

Approve Minutes

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: I. Opening Items C. Approve Minutes Approve Minutes

Minutes for Board Meeting on August 13, 2014



East Bay Innovation Academy

Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time Wednesday August 13, 2014 at 8:00 PM

Location 3400 Malcolm Ave, Oakland 94605

Directors Present Amber Banks, Kim Smith (remote), Laurie Jacobson Jones, Rochelle Benning, Tali Levy, Tom Pryor

Directors Absent
None

APPROVED

Guests Present Alex Harp, Devin Krugman, Emily Loecher

I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order

Laurie Jacobson Jones called a meeting of the board of directors of East Bay Innovation Academy to order on Wednesday Aug 13, 2014 at 8:03 PM.

C. Approve Minutes

Rochelle Benning made a motion to approve minutes from the Board Meeting on 07-23-14 Board Meeting on 07-23-14.

Amber Banks seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Unanimous vote.

D. Action Items

The Board Expansion Committee has taken on the board composition matrix action item. The open action item to connect faculty with grantwriters is held over to next meeting.

II. Executive Director Report

A. Opening Day Readiness

Alex Harp presented the Board with a report on Opening Day Readiness, specifically School Culture, Alignment of Staff, Learning and Teaching, Systems and Operations, and Revenue and Growth.

III. Academic Excellence

A. Instructional Preparation and Teacher Training Update

Devin Krugman presented the Board with EBIA's Professional Development Plan, including which areas have been completed and which are in the works. ACTION ITEM: Devin Krugman to develop a Google Doc for acronyms used at EBIA. ACTION ITEM: Laurie Jacobson Jones to share the template for the Personalized Learning Plan.

IV. Finance

A. 2013-14 Year-End Financial Update and 2014-15 Budget and Cash Flow

Dena Koran, of EdTec, outlined the 2013-14 Year-End Financial Update and the 20014-15 Budget and Cash Flow, particularly how and why EdTec reformulated certain financials, based on changed assumptions and circumstances. EBIA will face a cash shortfall without fundraising, thus the fundraising goal is \$500K for April 2015, and then \$250K for subsequent Aprils. Addressing the September Budget shortfall, Rochelle Benning asked the Board for ideas to cover a cash-flow issue with a short-term 30-day loan of \$186,668.

B. Finance Policy

Rochelle Benning asked the Board to approve the Finance Policy. Amber Banks made a motion to to approve the Finance Policy. Tom Pryor seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

C. Loan for September

Should EBIA not be able to secure a third party loan, EBIA will need to enter into a loan agreement to bridge the gap for September. The Board was advised to be ready to have a special board meeting to have this discussion.

V. Facility

A. Update on Prop 39 Agreement

Rochelle Benning updated the Board on the Prop 39 Agreement with OUSD. EBIA is still negotiating provisions relating to Dispute Resolution, Furnishings and Janitorial Services.

VI. Committee Reports

A. Hiring Committee

Laurie Jacobson Jones presented a flowchart of EBIA staff and updated the Board on staff hiring progress.

B. Board Development Committee

Tom Pryor updated the Board on the Board Expansion Committee, which is beginning to develop a pipeline.

VII. Other Business

A. Consent Agenda

Rochelle Benning made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Tom Pryor seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

VIII. Closing Items

A. Public Comment

There was no public comment.

B. Adjourn Meeting

Amber Banks made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Rochelle Benning seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion. There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:48 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, Tali Levy

Coversheet

Approve Minutes

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: I. Opening Items D. Approve Minutes Approve Minutes

Minutes for Board Meeting on August 13, 2014



East Bay Innovation Academy

Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time Wednesday August 13, 2014 at 7:30 PM

Location 3400 Malcolm Ave, Oakland 94605

Directors Present Amber Banks (remote), Kim Smith (remote), Laurie Jacobson Jones, Rochelle Benning, Tali Levy, Tom Pryor

Directors Absent
None

APPROVE

I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order

Laurie Jacobson Jones called a meeting of the board of directors of East Bay Innovation Academy to order on Wednesday Aug 13, 2014 at 7:34 PM.

II. Other Business

A. Public Employee Dismissal/Release

Laurie Jacobson Jones updated the board.

III. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:54 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, Tali Levy

Coversheet

Approve Minutes

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: I. Opening Items E. Approve Minutes Approve Minutes

Minutes for Board Meeting on September 4, 2014



East Bay Innovation Academy

Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time Thursday September 4, 2014 at 8:30 PM

Location Conference Call - 1 (862) 902-0240, Access Code: 687-4601

Directors Present

APPROVE

Amber Banks (remote), Laurie Jacobson Jones (remote), Rochelle Benning (remote), Tali Levy (remote), Tom Pryor (remote)

Directors Absent Kim Smith

I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order

Laurie Jacobson Jones called a meeting of the board of directors of East Bay Innovation Academy to order on Thursday Sep 4, 2014 at 8:40 PM.

II. Finance

A. September Bridge Loans

Due to state funding timing, there is a short term \$200K cash flow shortfall. Funding from the state will be in EBIA's account by 10/10. EBIA will therefore be unable to fund payroll

on 9/11 and 9/24. Two private lenders have stepped forward to cover the shortfall with a bridge loan. Lender #1 will fund by 9/10 for a 35 day loan, Lender #2 will fund by 9/17 for a 30 day loan. Both lenders have offered 0% interest for the term of the loan. If EBIA is unable to pay back in the indicated term, EBIA will incur penalties of a 15% interest rate. Laurie Jacobson Jones made a motion to to approve the bridge loans. Rochelle Benning seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion. Tali Levy recused self.

III. Closing Items

A. Public Comment

B. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:49 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, Tali Levy

Coversheet

Innovative Instruction Report

Section:II. Academic ExcellenceItem:A. Innovative Instruction ReportPurpose:FYISubmitted by:Devin KrugmanRelated Material:September.Board.Updates.DK.9.11.14.final.pptx



Innovative Instruction September 2014 Board Meeting Devin Krugman

East Bay Innovation Academy 3400 MALCOLMPowered by Boardon Track D, CA 94605 www.eastbayia.org

Model Realization





East Bay Innovation Academy 3400 MALCOLMPowered by Board On Track D, CA 94605 www.eastbayia.org

Baseline Performance Data



	Strength	Growth	Next Step
Reading	Literature, Vocabulary Acquisition and Use	Informational Text	Integration of Informational Text across curricula, particularly in Literature-Based Units
Math	Real and Complex Number Systems, Geometry	Statistics and Probability, Operations and Algebraic Thinking	Support differentiation by aligning Khan Academy assignments to RIT Scores
Language	Mechanics and Grammar	Writing (Plan, Organize, Develop, Revise, Research)	Development of Interim Project Steps
Science	Physical and Earth Sciences	Life Sciences	Integration of NGSS Practices and Cross- Cutting Concepts



East Bay Innovation Academy - Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 17, 2014 at 8:00 PM

October Intersession – PD (Draft)

8 of 117



East Bay Innovation Academy 3400 MALCOLMPowered by BoardOn Track D, CA 94605 www.eastbayia.org

Personalized Learning Plan

Objective: Develop a system that supports student growth in self-directed, social-emotional and academic learning while preparing them for college and career readiness.



East Bay Innovation Academy 3400 MALCOLM AVE, OAKLAND, CA 94605 www.eastbayra.org

Coversheet

Executive Directors Report

Section:III. CEO ReItem:A. ExecutivPurpose:FYISubmitted by:Alex HarpRelated Material:September

III. CEO Report A. Executive Directors Report FYI Alex Harp September Board presentation-AH Final.pptx



Executive Director Report September 2014 Board Meeting Alex Harp

East Bay Innovation Academy 3400 MALCOLMPowered by Boardon Track D, CA 94605 www.eastbayia.org

East Bay Innovation Academy - Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 17, 2014 at 8:00 PM

Learning and Teaching - Special Education

Target: All students will meet annual goals set forth on their IEPs

EBIA is committed to serving all students in a heterogeneous classroom setting. Currently, we have 16 students with IEPs whose main academic needs are met by one education specialist and two instructional aides.



We are contracting with outside agencies to provide required psychological, medical and speech services. Budget for contracted services is just over \$41,000. Current bids come in just under \$30,000.

All students will receive required contracted services beginning week of 9/22.



East Bay Innovation Academy - Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 17, 2014 at 8:00 PM

Learning and Teaching – Student Intersession

Purpose: Allow students to participate in learning experiences not offered during "academic sprints", provide opportunity for academic acceleration, engage students in real world experiences.



Realization challenges: Arts-related components needed to fill STEAM gaps, Academic acceleration plan needs refinement, Coordination of EBIA curriculum and delivery with outside agencies when developing partnerships



School Culture





Revenue and Growth





Coversheet

Finance Update

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: VI. Finance A. Finance Update FYI Dena Koren September.Board.Updates.DK.9.11.14.v3.pptx EBIA-2 Yr CF Projections-dk-20140912(1).pdf EBIA-1415 July-Aug Financials-dk-20140912(1).pdf



Innovative Instruction September 2014 Board Meeting

East Bay Innovation Academy 3400 MALCOLMPowered by BoardOnTrack D, CA 94605 www.eastbayia.org

Model Realization





East Bay Innovation Academy 3400 MALCOLMPowered by Board On Track D, CA 94605 www.eastbayia.org

Baseline Performance Data



	Strength	Growth	Next Step
Reading	Literature, Vocabulary Acquisition and Use	Informational Text	Integration of Informational Text across curricula, particularly in Literature-Based Units
Math	Real and Complex Number Systems, Geometry	Statistics and Probability, Operations and Algebraic Thinking	Support differentiation by aligning Khan Academy assignments to RIT Scores
Language	Mechanics and Grammar	Writing (Plan, Organize, Develop, Revise, Research)	Development of Interim Project Steps
Science	Physical and Earth Sciences	Life Sciences	Integration of NGSS Practices and Cross- Cutting Concepts



East Bay Innovation Academy 3400 MALCOLMPowered by BoardOnTrack D, CA 94605 www.eastbayia.org

East Bay Innovation Academy - Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 17, 2014 at 8:00 PM

October Intersession – PD (Draft)

30 of 117



East Bay Innovation Academy 3400 MALCOLMPowered by Board On Track D, CA 94605 www.eastbayia.org

East Bay Innovation Academy Monthly Cash Forecast As of August 31, 2014

	-						2014/ Projec								
	—	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Forecast	AP/AR
	_	Actual	Actual	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected		
Beginning	Cash	16,264	187,401	14,239	7,609	239,076	50,568	(101,999)	55,330	(88,045)	(85,956)	441,640	435,493		
Revenue															
	General Block Grant	-	-	-	568,177	-	-	304,122	-	158,939	134,512	124,300	124,300	1,548,861	134,512
	Federal Income	26,275	-	-	50,625	-	-	51,391	6,391	6,391	51,391	6,391	8,891	348,247	140,500
	Other State Income	-	-	-	-	-	-	559	559	19,226	19,226	12,170	1,137	128,549	75,674
	Local Revenues	0	0	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	0	-
	Fundraising and Grants	-	84	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	500,000	-	-	500,084	-
	Total Revenue	26,275	84	-	618,802	-	-	356,072	6,950	184,556	705,129	142,860	134,328	2,525,741	350,686
Expenses															
•	Compensation & Benefits	27,509	81,170	120,235	111,210	110,277	110,277	117,742	111,210	111,210	109,912	109,912	106,729	1,269,272	41,880
	Books & Supplies	87,288	26,516	18,261	11,432	6,464	8,589	17,908	8,064	10,789	8,064	10,464	6,789	229,308	8,677
	Services & Other Operating Ex	71,974	51,298	35,519	68,077	75,152	37,085	66,478	34,435	63,852	62,941	32,015	32,015	690,436	59,593
	Capital Outlay	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	Total Expenses	186,771	158,983	174,015	190,719	191,893	155,952	202,128	153,710	185,851	180,918	152,392	145,533	2,189,016	110,150
Operating 0	Cash Inflow (Outflow)	(160,496)	(158,899)	(174,015)	428,082	(191,893)	(155,952)	153,944	(146,760)	(1,295)	524,211	(9,531)	(11,205)	336,726	240,536
	Revenues - Prior Year Accrual	42.672													
	Expenses - Prior Year Accrual	(28,791)		-				-				-	-		
	Accounts Receivable - Current	(20,731)		-									-		
	Accounts Payable - Current Ye	63,852	(16,543)	(36,000)				-				-	-		
	Summerholdback for Teachers	-	2,280	3,385	3.385	3.385	3,385	3,385	3,385	3.385	3,385	3,385	3,385		
	Loans Payable (Current)		2,200	200,000	(200,000)	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
	Loans Payable (Long Term)	250,000			(200,000)	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
	Capital Leases Payable	-		-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-		
	Other Long Term Debt	-		-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-		
	Capital Expenditure & Deprecia	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
	Other Balance Sheet Changes	3,901	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Ending Cas	sh	187,401	14,239	7,609	239,076	50,568	(101,999)	55,330	(88,045)	(85,956)	441,640	435,493	427,673		

East Bay Innovation Academy Monthly Cash Forecast As of August 31, 2014

_						2015. Projec								
-	Jul Projected	Aug Projected	Sep Projected	Oct Projected	Nov Projected	Dec Projected	Jan Projected	Feb Projected	Mar Projected	Apr Projected	May Projected	Jun Projected	Forecast	AP/AR
Beginning Cash	427,673	353,965	276,599	68,514	250,065	159,207	65,095	148,620	100,877	22,253	472,914	445,554		
Revenue														
General Block Grant Federal Income	-	78,865	99,649 -	342,312	132,257	132,257	239,690 14,895	132,257 8,795	176,448 13,265	330,753 44,365	137,351 13,265	137,351 13,265	2,269,942 240,372	330,753 132,521
Other State Income	4,667	4,667	9,109	9,109	9,109	9,109	10,994	18,959	9,610	9,610	17,575	9,610	203,950	81,823
Local Revenues	-	-	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	-
Fundraising and Grants	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	250,000	-	-	250,087	87
Total Revenue	4,667	83,531	108,758	351,421	141,366	141,366	265,579	160,011	199,323	634,728	168,192	160,226	2,964,351	545,183
Expenses														
Compensation & Benefits	55,405	147,760	156,438	151,881	151,122	151,122	157,198	151,881	151,881	149,174	149,174	198,797	1,771,835	-
Books & Supplies	28,224	60,275	73,340	10,567	10,567	16,780	10,567	10,567	16,780	10,567	10,567	16,780	282,436	6,853
Services & Other Operating Ex	12,204	33,915	81,738	47,096	81,140	70,250	42,713	39,979	114,377	38,167	40,900	69,987	715,177	42,711
Capital Outlay			-	-	-	-		-		-		-		-
Total Expenses	95,833	241,950	311,517	209,545	242,829	238,152	210,478	202,428	283,039	197,908	200,642	285,565	2,769,448	49,564
Operating Cash Inflow (Outflow)	(91,166)	(158,419)	(202,759)	141,876	(101,463)	(96,786)	55,101	(42,417)	(83,715)	436,820	(32,450)	(125,339)	194,904	495,620
Revenues - Prior Year Accrual	163,292	75,962		45,000	15,932	8,000	33,750	-		8,750				
Expenses - Prior Year Accrual:	(110,150)	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Accounts Receivable - Current	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Accounts Payable - Current Ye	\$0.00	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Summerholdback for Teachers	(35,685)	5,091	5,091	5,091	5,091	5,091	5,091	5,091	5,091	5,091	5,091	5,091		
Loans Payable (Current)	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Loans Payable (Long Term)	-	-	(10,417)	(10,417)	(10,417)	(10,417)	(10,417)	(10,417)	-	-	-	-		
Capital Leases Payable	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Other Long Term Debt Capital Expenditure & Deprecia	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Other Balance Sheet Changes														
Ending Cash	353,965	276,599	68,514	250,065	159,207	65,095	148,620	100,877	22,253	472,914	445,554	325,306		

	_	Actu	al	B	udget vs. Actu	al					
	-	Jul	Aug	Actual YTD	Forecast YTD	Variance (YTD less Budget)	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	Variance (Prev vs. Curr Forecast)	Forecast Remaining
SUMMARY Revenue	,										
Revenue	General Block Grant	-	-	-	-		1,708,198	1,548,861	1,548,861	-	1,548,861
	Federal Revenue	26,275	-	26,275	26,275		398,372	348,247	348,247	-	321,972
	Other State Revenues	-	-	-	-	-	107,903	128,549	128,549	-	128,549
	Local Revenues	0	0	0	-	0	99,873	-	0	0	-
	Fundraising and Grants	-	84	84	-	84	105,466	500,000	500,084	84	500,000
	Total Revenue	26,275	84	26,359	26,275	84	2,419,812	2,525,657	2,525,741	84	2,499,383
Expenses											
	Compensation and Benefits	27,509	81,170	108,678	104,458	(4,221)	1,462,566	1,267,938	1,269,272	(1,334)	1,160,594
	Books and Supplies	87,288	26,516	113,804	109,660	(4,145)	413,540	229,308	229,308	-	115,503
	Services and Other Operating Exp.	71,974	51,298	123,272	87,341	(35,931)	473,226	690,433	690,436	(2)	567,164
	Capital Outlay	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	Total Expenses	186,771	158,983	345,754	301,458	(44,296)	2,349,332	2,187,679	2,189,016	(1,337)	1,843,261
Operating	Income (excluding Depreciation)	(160,496)	(158,899)	(319,396)	(275,184)	(44,212)	70,480	337,978	336,726	(1,253)	656,121
Operating I	ncome (including Depreciation)	(160,496)	(158,899)	(319,396)	(275,184)	(44,212)	70,480	337,978	336,726	(1,253)	656,121
Fund Balar	nce										
	Beginning Balance (Unaudited) Audit Adjustment	22,414	(138,083)	22,414 -	22,414 -		22,414 -	22,414	22,414 -		
	Beginning Balance (Audited)	22,414		22,414	22,414		22,414	22,414	22,414		
	Operating Income (including Depreci	,	(158,899)	(319,396)	(275,184)		70,480	337,978	336,726		
Endina Fu	nd Balance (including Depreciation)	(138,083)	(296,982)	(296,982)	(252,770)		92,894	360.392	359,139		

	Actual		В	udget vs. Actu	al					
	Jul	Aug	Actual YTD	Forecast YTD	Variance (YTD less Budget)	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	Variance (Prev vs. Curr Forecast)	Forecast Remaining
Detail										
nrollment Summary						· .	-	-		
4-6						139	140	140	-	
7-8						93	75	75	-	
9-12						-	-	-	-	
Total Enrolled						232	215	215		
DA %										
4-6						97%	95%	95%		
7-8						97%	95%	95%		
9-12						97%	95%	95%		
Average						97%	95%	95%		
A										
4-6						135.0	133.0	133.0		
7-8			1			90.0	71.3	71.3		
9-12			1			0.0	0.0	0.0		
Total ADA			1			225.0	204.3	204.3		

		Actua	al	B	udget vs. Actu	al		Bud	get		
	_	Jul	Aug	Actual YTD	Forecast YTD	Variance (YTD less Budget)	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	Variance (Prev vs. Curr Forecast)	Forecast Remaining
REVENUE	•										
General P	Purpose Entitlement									-	
8011	Charter Schools General Purpose Entitle	-	-	-	-	-	1,015,797	1,161,611	1,161,611	-	1,161,611
8012	Education Protection Account Entitlement	-	-	-	-	-	310,126	40,850	40,850	-	40,850
8096	Charter Schools in Lieu of Prop. Taxes (-	-	-	-	-	382,275	346,400	346,400	-	346,400
	+	-	-	-	-	-	1,708,198	1,548,861	1,548,861	-	1,548,861
8100	Federal Revenue	_									
8220	Child Nutrition Programs	-					37,872	38,347	38,347		38,347
8291	Title I	-	-		-	-	10,000	10,000	10,000	-	10,000
8292	Title II	-	-	-	-	-	500	500	500	-	500
8298	Implementation Grant	26,275	-	26,275	26,275	-	350,000	299,400	299,400	-	273,125
8299	All Other Federal Revenue	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	SUBTOTAL - Federal Income	26,275	-	26,275	26,275	-	398,372	348,247	348,247	-	321,972
8300	Other State Revenues	-	-								
8381	Special Education - Entitlement (State)	-	-	-	-	-	100,000	93,333	93,333	-	93,333
8520	Child Nutrition - State	-	-	-	-	-	3,343	3,353	3,353	-	3,353
8550	Mandated Cost Reimbursements	-	-	-	-	-	4,560	-	-	-	-
8560	State Lottery Revenue	-	-	-	-	-	-	31,863	31,863	-	31,863
	SUBTOTAL - Other State Income	-	-	-	-	-	107,903	128,549	128,549	-	128,549
8600	Other Local Revenue										
8634	Food Service Sales	-	-	-	-	-	99,873	-	-	-	-
8660	Interest	0	0	0	-	0	-	-	0	0	-
	SUBTOTAL - Local Revenues	0	0	0	-	0	99,873	-	0	0	-
8800	Donations/Fundraising										
8802	Donations - Private	-	-		-	-	105,466	500,000	500,000	-	500,000
8803	Fundraising	-	84	84	-	84	-	-	84	84	-
	SUBTOTAL - Fundraising and Grants	-	84	84	-	84	105,466	500,000	500,084	84	500,000
TOTAL RI	EVENUE	26,275	84	26,359	26,275	84	2,419,812	2,525,657	2,525,741	84	2,499,383

		Actu	al	В	udget vs. Actu	al		Bud	get		
	_	Jul	Aug	Actual YTD	Forecast YTD	Variance (YTD less Budget)	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	Variance (Prev vs. Curr Forecast)	Forecast Remaining
EXPENSE	s										
Compensa	ation & Benefits										
1000	Certificated Salaries	-	-								
1100	Teachers Salaries	-	24,476	24,476	24,762	286	500,000	574,286	574,286	-	549,810
1101	Teacher - Stipends	-	-	-	-	-	33,000	-	-	-	-
1111	Teacher - Bonuses	-	-	-	-	-	-	18,960	18,960	-	18,960
1148	Teacher - Special Ed	-	2,905	2,905	3,048	143	55,000	64,000	64,000	-	61,095
1300	Certificated Supervisor & Administrator	16,096	19,833	35,929	36,080	150	228,000	234,413	234,413	-	198,484
1311	Cert Admin - Bonuses	-	-	· ·	-		-	11,520	11,520	-	11,520
1401	Certificated bonuses - Custom 1	-	-	· ·	-		23,370	-	-	-	-
1402	Certificated bonuses - Custom 2	-	-	-	-	•	10,800	-	-	-	-
	SUBTOTAL - Certificated Employees	16,096	47,214	63,310	63,889	579	850,170	903,179	903,179	-	839,868
2000	Classified Salaries										
2101	Classified - PE	-	-		-	-	45,000	-	-	-	-
2102	Classified - Computer Science	-	-		-	-	70,000	-	-	-	-
2103	Classified - Tutors	-	1,400	1,400	3,184	1,783	60,000	63,670	63,670	-	62,270
2300	Classified Supervisor & Administrator Sa	6,667	7,902	14,569	15,068	500	80,000	83,000	84,235	(1,235)	69,666
2311	Classified Admin - Bonuses	-	-	· ·	-		-	11,400	11,400	-	11,400
2400	Classified Clerical & Office Salaries	-	2,948	2,948	2,880	(68)	36,000	31,680	31,680	-	28,733
2601	Classified bonuses - Custom 1	-	-	· ·	-	- 1	3,450	-	-	-	-
2602	Classified bonuses - Custom 2	-	-	· ·	-		4,800	-	-	-	-
2603	Classified bonuses - Custom 3	-	-		-		1,080	-	-	-	-
	SUBTOTAL - Classified Employees	6,667	12,250	18,916	21,132	2,215	300,330	189,750	190,985	(1,235)	172,069
3000	Employee Benefits										
3100	STRS	1,429	4,193	5,622	5,673	51	80,196	80,202	80,202	-	74,580
3300	OASDI-Medicare-Alternative	1,754	3,747	5,500	2,073	(3,427)	35,674	27,773	27,867	(94)	22,367
3400	Health & Welfare Benefits	-	12,272	12,272	8,000	(4,272)	123,480	44,000	44,000	-	31,728
3500	Unemployment Insurance	423	1,114	1,537	1,866	329	15,190	18,662	18,662	-	17,125
3600	Workers Comp Insurance	1,140	380	1,520	1,824	303	57,526	4,372	4,377	(5)	2,856
	SUBTOTAL - Employee Benefits	4,746	21,706	26,452	19,437	(7,015)	312,066	175,009	175,108	(99)	148,657
East Bay Innovation Academy Budget vs. Actuals

As of August 31, 2014

		Actual		Budget vs. Actual			Budget					
	_	Jul	Aug	Actual YTD	Forecast YTD	Variance (YTD less Budget)	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	Variance (Prev vs. Curr Forecast)	Forecast Remaining	
4000	Books & Supplies											
4100	Approved Textbooks & Core Curricula N	-	14,511	14,511	8,065	(6,446)	40,000	31,665	31,665	-	17,154	
4200	Books & Other Reference Materials	71		71	-	(71)	1,200	1,300	1,300	-	1,229	
4300	Materials & Supplies	-	502	502	-	(502)	-	8,600	8,600	-	8,098	
4315	Custodial Supplies	-		-	-		2,400	-	-	-	-	
4320	Educational Software	-		-	-		15,000	7,525	7,525	-	7,525	
4326	Art & Music Supplies	-		-	-		6,000	-	-	-	-	
4330	Office Supplies	480	3,087	3,568	3,200	(368)	6,500	8,000	8,000	-	4,432	
4400	Noncapitalized Equipment	15,301	158	15,459	15,500	41	140,325	38,972	38,972	-	23,513	
4410	Classroom Furniture, Equipment & Sup	1,972	4,723	6,694	7,594	900	55,480	7,594	7,594	-	900	
4420	Computers (individual items less than \$	68,204	4,033	72,236	74,631	2,395	-	80,224	80,224	-	7,988	
4430	Non Classroom Related Furniture, Equi	670	93	763	670	(93)	835	959	959	-	196	
4710	Student Food Services	590	(590)	-	-	·	145,800	44,469	44,469	-	44,469	
	SUBTOTAL - Books and Supplies	87,288	26,516	113,804	109,660	(4,145)	413,540	229,308	229,308	-	115,503	

East Bay Innovation Academy Budget vs. Actuals

As of August 31, 2014

		Actual		В	udget vs. Actu	al					
	_	Jul	Aug	Actual YTD	Forecast YTD	Variance (YTD less Budget)	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	Variance (Prev vs. Curr Forecast)	Forecast Remaining
5000	Services & Other Operating Expenses										
5210	Conference Fees	1,500	4,500	6,000	1,500	(4,500)	4,200	7,500	7,500	-	1,500
5220	Travel and Lodging	172	(172)	-	-	-	2,100	2,250	2,250	-	2,250
5300	Dues & Memberships	319	253	572	-	(572)	3,850	6,326	6,326	-	5,754
5450	Insurance - Other	2,761	920	3,681	4,601	920	13,000	11,043	11,043	-	7,362
5515	Janitorial, Gardening Services & Supplie	-	183	183	-	(183)	150	70,000	70,000	-	69,817
5535	Utilities - All Utilities	639	1,798	2,437	3,699	1,262	33,600	40,688	40,688	-	38,251
5605	Equipment Leases	-		-	-		4,800	-	-	-	-
5611	Prop 39 Related Costs	-		-	-		115,505	115,505	115,505	-	115,505
5615	Repairs and Maintenance - Building	-	254	254	-	(254)	4,800	4,800	4,800	-	4,546
5800	Other Services & Operating Expenses	55		55	-	(55)	-	3,900	3,900	-	3,845
5803	Accounting Fees	-	-	-	-		8,200	8,200	8,200	-	8,200
5809	Banking Fees	-	-	-	-		300	-	-	-	-
5810	Intersession	-	-	-	-		-	86,000	86,000	-	86,000
5812	Business Services	9,138	9,138	18,276	9,675	(8,601)	111,033	106,424	106,424	-	88,148
5815	Consultants - Instructional	52,007	12,338	64,345	57,444	(6,901)	80,000	72,694	72,694	-	8,349
5824	District Oversight Fees	-	-	-	-	-	17,082	15,489	15,489	-	15,489
5830	Field Trips Expenses	-	-	-	-		6,000	6,450	6,450	-	6,450
5836	Fingerprinting	200	-	200	380	180	1,080	760	760	-	560
5839	Fundraising Expenses	-	2	2	-	(2)	-	-	2	(2)	-
5845	Legal Fees	-	234	234	1,750	1,516	-	10,500	10,500	-	10,266
5857	Payroll Fees	114	198	312	250	(62)	2,400	1,500	1,500	-	1,188
5863	Professional Development	-	16,223	16,223	-	(16,223)	18,000	28,740	28,740	-	12,517
5869	Special Education Contract Instructors	-	2,313	2,313	1,875	(438)	5,906	41,375	41,375	-	39,063
5875	Staff Recruiting	-	-	-	-	-	3,500	-	-	-	-
5878	Student Assessment	-	2,863	2,863	-	(2,863)	-	3,000	3,000	-	138
5881	Student Information System	4,667	-	4,667	4,667	0	14,000	14,000	14,000	-	9,333
5884	Substitutes	-		-	-		-	18,090	18,090	-	18,090
5887	Technology Services	-	-	-	-		7,200	-	-	-	-
5900	Communications	335	322	657	1,500	843	14,400	13,500	13,500	-	12,843
5905	Communications - Cell Phones	-	-	-	-	-	120	-	-	-	-
5915	Postage and Delivery	68	(68)	-	-		2,000	1,700	1,700	-	1,700
	SUBTOTAL - Services & Other Operat	71,974	51,298	123,272	87,341	(35,931)	473,226	690,433	690,436	(2)	567,164

East Bay Innovation Academy Budget vs. Actuals

As of August 31, 2014

	-	Actua	al	Budget vs. Actual			Budget				
	_	Jul	Aug	Actual YTD	Forecast YTD	Variance (YTD less Budget)	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	Variance (Prev vs. Curr Forecast)	Forecast Remaining
6000	Capital Outlay										
	SUBTOTAL - Capital Outlay	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
TOTAL EXPENSES		186,771	158,983	345,754	301,458	(44,296)	2,349,332	2,187,679	2,189,016	(1,337)	1,843,261
6900	Total Depreciation (includes Prior Yea	-	<u> </u>	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
TOTAL EXF	ENSES including Depreciation	186,771	158,983	345,754	301,458	(44,296)	2,349,332	2,187,679	2,189,016	(1,337)	1,843,261

Coversheet

Fundraising Overview

Section:	VII. Development
Item:	A. Fundraising Overview
Purpose:	Discuss
Submitted by:	Laurie Jacobson Jones
Related Material:	Fundraising Goals.pptx

BACKGROUND:

In June, when discussing division of responsibilities between the Board and the CEO, the Board agreed to take leadership of fundraising for this year.

RECOMMENDATION:

Establish a Development committee. Create Plan. Integrate efforts with the Parent's Advisory committee.

2014-15 Fundraising

\$500K

- Focus
 - Meet program objectives
 - Strengthen cash position to weather "lumpy" state payments
 - Foundation for future strategic growth
 - Permanent facility
 - Replication
 - Ongoing technology integration/upgrades
- Categories
 - School Community
 - Private Donations
 - Corporate Partnerships
 - Foundations and Grants

Coversheet

Consent Agenda

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: IX. Other Business A. Consent Agenda Vote Alex Harp Psych services bid.docx Zoo MOU.PDF MOU Chabot Space Science Center _ EBIA Final V2ST 9_2014.docx Maxim bid.PDF Name of LEA: _East Bay Innovation Academy_____ Name of NPA: _East Bay Family Institute

Nonpublic, nonsectarian <u>Agency Services</u>

MASTER CONTRACT

2014-2015

(04/2014)

Non-Public Agency Master Contract - Page 1

LEA: EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY Contract Year 2014/2015 Type of Contract: X Master Contract for fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the term of this contract. Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student. Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpos of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date: When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above shall amend Section 4 - Term of Master Contract. NOTE: THIS MASTER CONTRACT IS TO BE USED ONLY WHEN CONTRACTING SERVICES FROM NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN AGENCIES, AS DEFINED IN CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE SECTION 56033. A SEPARATE FORM OF MASTER CONTRACT IS AVAILABLE FOR USE WHEN		GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR, NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN AGENCY SERVICES
Type of Contract: X Master Contract for fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the term of this contract. Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student. Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpos of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date: When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above shall amend Section 4 – Term of Master Contract. NOTE: THIS MASTER CONTRACT IS TO BE USED ONLY WHEN CONTRACTING SERVICES FROM <u>NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN AGENCIES, AS DEFINED IN CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE SECTION 56035. A SEPARATE FORM OF MASTER CONTRACT IS AVAILABLE FOR USE WHEN </u>		LEA: EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY
X Master Contract for fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the term of this contract. Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student. Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpos of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date: When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above shall amend Section 4 – Term of Master Contract. NOTE: THIS MASTER CONTRACT IS TO BE USED ONLY WHEN CONTRACTING SERVICES FROM NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN AGENCIES, AS DEFINED IN CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE SECTION 56035. A SEPARATE FORM OF MASTER CONTRACT IS AVAILABLE FOR USE WHEN		Contract Year2014/2015
term of this contract. Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student. Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpos of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:	<u>Type a</u>	of Contract:
into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student. Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpos of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date: When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above shall amend Section 4 – Term of Master Contract. NOTE: THIS MASTER CONTRACT IS TO BE USED ONLY WHEN CONTRACTING SERVICES FROM NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN AGENCIES, AS DEFINED IN CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE SECTION 56035. A SEPARATE FORM OF MASTER CONTRACT IS AVAILABLE FOR USE WHEN	X	
of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date: When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above shall amend Section 4 – Term of Master Contract. NOTE: THIS MASTER CONTRACT IS TO BE USED ONLY WHEN CONTRACTING SERVICES FROM <u>NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN AGENCIES</u> , AS DEFINED IN CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE SECTION 56035. A SEPARATE FORM OF MASTER CONTRACT IS AVAILABLE FOR USE WHEN		
- Term of Master Contract. NOTE: THIS MASTER CONTRACT IS TO BE USED ONLY WHEN CONTRACTING SERVICES FROM <u>NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN AGENCIES</u> , AS DEFINED IN CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE SECTION 56035. A SEPARATE FORM OF MASTER CONTRACT IS AVAILABLE FOR USE WHEN		of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole
	– Term NOTE <u>NONP</u> SECTI	n of Master Contract. : THIS MASTER CONTRACT IS TO BE USED ONLY WHEN CONTRACTING SERVICES FROM UBLIC, NONSECTARIAN AGENCIES, AS DEFINED IN CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE
	– Term NOTE <u>NONP</u> SECTI	n of Master Contract. : THIS MASTER CONTRACT IS TO BE USED ONLY WHEN CONTRACTING SERVICES FROM <u>UBLIC, NONSECTARIAN AGENCIES</u> , AS DEFINED IN CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE ION 56035. A SEPARATE FORM OF MASTER CONTRACT IS AVAILABLE FOR USE WHEN
	– Term NOTE <u>NONP</u> SECTI	n of Master Contract. : THIS MASTER CONTRACT IS TO BE USED ONLY WHEN CONTRACTING SERVICES FROM <u>UBLIC, NONSECTARIAN AGENCIES</u> , AS DEFINED IN CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE ION 56035. A SEPARATE FORM OF MASTER CONTRACT IS AVAILABLE FOR USE WHEN
	– Term NOTE <u>NONP</u> SECTI	n of Master Contract. : THIS MASTER CONTRACT IS TO BE USED ONLY WHEN CONTRACTING SERVICES FROM <u>UBLIC, NONSECTARIAN AGENCIES</u> , AS DEFINED IN CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE ION 56035. A SEPARATE FORM OF MASTER CONTRACT IS AVAILABLE FOR USE WHEN

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.	MASTER CONTRACT	5
2.	CERTIFICATION	5
3.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS	6
4.	TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT	6
5.	INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT	
	FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION	6
6.	INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT	7
7.	DEFINITIONS	7

II. ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

NOTICES	9
MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS	9
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE	9
SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST	10
VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW	10
MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO	
CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES	10
TERMINATION	10
INSURANCE	10
INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS	12
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	12
SUBCONTRACTING	12
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	13
NON-DISCRIMINATION	13
	MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS SEVERABILITY CLAUSE SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES TERMINATION INSURANCE INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SUBCONTRACTING CONFLICTS OF INTEREST NON-DISCRIMINATION

III. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

21.	FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION	13
22.	GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION	14
23.	INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES	15
24.	CLASS SIZE	15
25.	CALENDARS	15
26.	DATA REPORTING	15
27.	LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT	15
28.	[RESERVED]	15
29.	LEA MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS	16
30.	POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS	16
31.	STUDENT DISCIPLINE	17
32.	IEP TEAM MEETINGS	17

33.	SURROGATE PARENTS	18
34.	DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS	18
35.	COMPLAINT PROCEDURES	18
36.	LEA STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARD	
	AND ASSESSMENTS	18
37.	[RESERVED]	19
38.	LEA STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE	19
39.	WITHDRAWAL OF LEA STUDENT FROM PROGRAM	19
40.	PARENT ACCESS	19
41.	SERVICES AND SUPERVISION ON PUBLIC SCHOOL CAMPUSES	20
42.	[RESERVED]	20
43.	[RESERVED]	20
44.	MONITORING	20

IV. <u>PERSONNEL</u>

45.	CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS	21
46.	STAFF QUALIFICATIONS	21
47.	VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND	
	OTHER DOCUMENTS	22
48.	STAFF ABSENCE	22
49 .	STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR	23

V. <u>HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES</u>

50.	HEALTH AND SAFETY	23
51.	FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATION	23
52.	ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION	23
53.	INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING	24
54.	CHILD ABUSE REPORTING	24
55.	SEXUAL HARASSMENT	24
56.	REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN	24

VI. FINANCIAL

24
25
7
7
7
8
8
1



CONTRACT NUMBER:

LEA: East Bay Innovation Academy

NONPUBLIC AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER:

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT

AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. MASTER CONTRACT

 This Master Contract is entered into this ____14_ day of ____August_____, 2014, between

 ____East Bay Innovation Academy_______(hereinafter referred to as

"LEA") East Bay Family Institute

(hereinafter referred to "CONTRACTOR") for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to LEA students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 *et seq.* and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 *et seq.*, AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this agreement does not commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any LEA student, or CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA an Individual Services Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA") and a Nonpublic Services Student Enrollment form as specified in the LEA Procedures. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all services specified in the student's Individualized Education Plan (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days of an LEA student's enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each LEA student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and /or electronic data base for ISA developing including invoicing.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with nonpublic agency placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic agency placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the LEA student's parent.

2. CERTIFICATION

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a nonpublic, nonsectarian agency. All nonpublic agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 *et seq* and within the professional scope of practice of each providers license, certification and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR's nonpublic agency certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on

Non-Public Agency Master Contract – Page 5

or before the date this contract is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated in Section 24 of the Master Contract.

With respect to CONTRACTOR's certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this contract unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies, and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss and costs (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to, the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, LEA student enrollment and transfer, LEA student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE nonpublic agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a).

4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015(Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. However, the parties acknowledge that any subsequent Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2015. In the event the contract is not renegotiated by June 30th, an interim contract may be made available as mutually agreed upon for up to 90 days from July 1 of the new fiscal year. (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of the LEA.

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR's ownership or authorized representative shall be provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized representative.

5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes the LEA Procedures and each Individual Services Agreement and they are incorporated herein by this reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the LEA may modify the LEA procedures from time to time without the consent of CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract or a renewal.

At a minimum such information shall include copies of teacher credentials and clearance, insurance documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the application packet is not completed and returned to LEA, no Master Contract will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract's effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized LEA students at the discretion of the LEA.

6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This contract shall include an ISA developed for each LEA student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for LEA students enrolled with the approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized LEA students.

Any and all changes to a LEA student's educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the LEA student's IEP. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a LEA student's parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a LEA student's IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) business days of the last date a service was provided.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, CONTRACTOR shall abide by the "stay-put" requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees otherwise or an interim alternative educational placement is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code section 56366(c) (2).

7. **DEFINITIONS**

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

a. The term "CONTRACTOR" means a nonpublic, nonsectarian agency certified by the California Department of Education and its officers, agents, employees.

- b. The term "authorized LEA representative" means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for nonpublic agencies. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Plan Local Area (SELPA) of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA maintains sole responsibility for the contract, unless otherwise specified in the contract
- c. The term "credential" means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(j).
- d. The term "qualified" means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and designated instruction and services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which he or she is providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (y)).

- e The term "license" means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to themselves using a specified professional title. If a license is not available through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(r).
- f. The term "parent" means a biological or adoptive parent unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal authority to make educational decisions for the child, a guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent or authorized to make educational decisions for the child, an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the child's welfare, a surrogate parent, a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child's behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2). Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the nonpublic agency under contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education Code section 56028).
- g. The term "days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified.
- h. The phrase "billable day" means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs.
- i. The phrase "billable day of attendance" means a school day as defined in California Education Code Section 46307, in which a LEA student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA.

j. It is understood that the term "Master Contract" also means "Agreement" and is referred to as such in this document.

ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

8. NOTICES

All notices provided for by this contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of the Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this Master Contract.

9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, "records" shall include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic agency certifications by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain LEA student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of CONTRACTOR's employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an access log for each LEA student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving information from the LEA student's record. Such log need record access to the LEA student's records by: (a) the LEA student's parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the LEA student's parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this paragraph, "employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR" do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant parents access to student records, and comply with parents' requests for copies of student records, as required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of agency closure, to forward LEA student records within ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, and reports. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five business days.

10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR's successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control.

12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the County where the LEA is located.

13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking such modification shall provide thirty (30) days' notice of any such changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based.

14. **TERMINATION**

This Master Contract or Individual Service Agreement may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice California Education Code section 56366(a)(4). At the time of termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 5 or 6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

15. INSURANCE

Contractor shall, at his, her, or its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of this Agreement, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with Contractor's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:

A. **Commercial General Liability Insurance**, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$2,000,000 per occurrence

- \$ 500,000 fire damage
- \$ 5,000 medical expenses
- \$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury
- \$3,000,000 general aggregate
- \$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR's policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or

abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such coverage.

B. **Business Auto Liability Insurance** for all owned scheduled, non-owned or hired automobiles with a \$1 million combined single limit.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students' homes or other locations as approved service location by the LEA, CONTRACTOR must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements.

C. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance in a form and amount covering Contractor's full liability under the California Workers' Compensation Insurance and Safety Act and in accordance with applicable state and federal laws.

Part A – Statutory Limits Part B - \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000 Employers Liability

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, <u>including</u> Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

\$1,000,000 per occurrence \$2,000,000 general aggregate

- E. Contractor, upon execution of this contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of Education as additional insured's premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by Contractor and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR's obligations under this contract at no additional charge.
- F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above \$100,000 must be declared to and approved by the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR's sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.
- G. For any claims related to the services, the CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- H. All Certificates of Insurance shall reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate.

CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to any compensation for any special education and/or DIS provided to any pupil for any period during which CONTRACTOR failed to fully comply with this Section 15.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that changes in insurance coverage obligations under this section is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.

16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by the law, LEA agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless CONTRACTOR and its officers, agents and employees against all liability, loss and costs (including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising from actions, suits, claims or demands attributable solely and exclusively to acts or omissions of LEA, and LEA's officers, agents and employees, in performance of this Agreement.

To the fullest extent allowed by the law, CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless LEA and its officers, agents and employees against all liability, loss and costs (including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising from actions, suits, claims or demands attributable (a) solely and exclusively to acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR, and CONTRACTOR's officers, agents and employees, in performance of this Agreement, (b) to CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies, as provided for in Section 3, above, or (c) to LEA being held to be a partner, joint venturer, co-principle, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, as provided for in Section 17, below.

The parties' indemnity and coverage obligations shall survive the termination of this Agreement with respect to any claim arising from the parties' actual or alleged performance or non-performance of their respective rights, privileges or obligations existing under this Agreement.

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the state of California, that the selfinsurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its self-insurance covers LEA's indemnification obligations under this Master Contract.

17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this Agreement as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.

If the LEA is held to be a partner, joint venturer, co-principle, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that holding, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

18. **SUBCONTRACTING**

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR's original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the provision of special education and/or related services (including without limitation transportation) for any LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the

term of each subcontract. Such subcontractor's insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms provided by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor's work commences. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA and the LEA Board of Education as additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract. All Certificates of Insurance shall reference the LEA contract number, name of the agency submitting the certificate, indication of NPA status, and the location of the agency submitting the certificate. In addition, all sub-contractors must meet the requirements as contained in section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.

19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student's advocate. Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at CONTRACTOR's facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest.

Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, LEA shall neither execute an ISA with CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a LEA student when a recommendation for special education and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR to the LEA student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e. before or after the LEA student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR's agency) or whether an assessment of the LEA student is performed or a report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the LEA student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as "IEE") and its recommendations, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom the IEE is requested. Likewise, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund services through the evaluator whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an individual who was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty five (365) days prior to executing this contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of the school year by LEA.

20. NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of race, religion, sex, national origin, age, sexual orientation, or disability in employment or operation of its programs.

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION

LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan (hereinafter referred to as "ITP") of each LEA student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide to each LEA student special education and/or related services (including transition services) within the nonpublic agency consistent with the LEA student's IEP and as specified in the ISA. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease. Pursuant to California Education Code section 56366(b), transportation shall not be provided through the use of services or equipment owned, leased, or contracted by the LEA for students served by CONTRACTOR unless those services and equipment are provided directly or subcontracted by the CONTRACTOR.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities for LEA students, as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related services as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the LEA student's enrollment under the terms of this Master Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities when specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the nonpublic school. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment, which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations.

CONTRACTOR may charge a LEA student's parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the LEA student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the LEA student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the LEA student's parent(s) of the services and/or activities. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility as specified in the LEA Procedures.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the LEA student to receive a free appropriate public education shall not interfere with the LEA student's receipt of special education and/or related services as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

All nonpublic agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 *et seq.*, and shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment, which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations.

CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent with LEA and CDE guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. The nonpublic agency providing Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written treatment plan that specifies the nature of their nonpublic agency service for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA. School-based services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. All services not provided in the school setting require the presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as requested. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult care giver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master Contract. Contractors providing Behavior Intervention services

must have a trained staff qualified to provide such services. It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program.

CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for transportation services for LEA students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

The total number of minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the LEA student's ISA developed in accordance with the LEA student's IEP.

24. CLASS SIZE

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between the ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 *et seq.*

25. CALENDARS

CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student's school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA calendar unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. It is understood that services may not be provided on weekends, holidays and other times when school is not in session.

26. DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide all data related to student information and billing information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide all data related to any and sections of this contract and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all nonpublic agencies shall utilize the Special Education Information System (SEIS) or comparable system approved by the LEA and SELPA for all IEP development and progress reporting. Additional progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTORS with approved forms and/or format for such data including but not limited to invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may approve use of CONTRACTORS provided forms at their discretion.

27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive Environment ("LRE") options and/or Dual Enrollment options for students to have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team's recommendations activities to support the transition.

28. [RESERVED]

29. LEA MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, and standardized testing. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 56521.5 regarding positive behavior interventions. LEA students who exhibit serious behavioral challenges must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal law and its implementing regulations. If the individualized education program ("IEP") team determines that a student's behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a BIP, the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student's behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 regarding emergency interventions and Behavioral Emergency Reports. Evidence of such training shall be submitted to the LEA at the beginning of the school year and within 6 days of any new hire. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff members are trained annually in crisis intervention and emergency procedures as related to appropriate behavior management strategies. Training includes certification with <u>Crisis Prevention Intervention</u> (CPI) or a similarly recognized and approved crisis intervention program.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1 emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP), and instead may only be used to control behavior that is unpredictable and spontaneous. For an emergency intervention to be used, the behavior must pose a clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others. Before emergency interventions may be applied, the behavior must be of the kind that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. Emergency intervention shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER when an emergency occurs that is defined as a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. Emergencies *require* a BER form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for administrative action. CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. If the student's IEP does not contain a Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP), CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA an IEP meeting

within two (2) days to review the BER, determine if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective.

CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for any of the following prohibited interventions, or any other intervention similar to or like the following: (a) locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room; (b) employment of a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, except that techniques such as prone containment may be used as an emergency intervention by staff trained in those procedures; (c) an amount of force that exceeds that which is reasonable and necessary under the circumstances, pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1(d)(1-3).

31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with state and federal law and regulations.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a LEA student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA and a manifestation IEP team meeting shall be scheduled. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the LEA student's name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA student's behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10th) day of suspension. CONTRACTOR shall notify and invite LEA representatives to the IEP team meeting where the manifestation determination will be made.

32. **IEP TEAM MEETINGS**

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate the educational progress of each student placed with CONTRACTOR. Each LEA student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding LEA students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student's IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR'S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this Master Contract unless otherwise agreed on in writing by the LEA.

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the *approved electronic IEP system of the LEA such as* the Special Education Information System (SEIS) for all IEP planning and progress reporting. The SELPA shall provide training for any NPA to assure access to THE APPROVED SYSTEM. The NPA shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on THE APPROVED SYSTEM and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When a student disenrolls from the NPA, the NPA shall discontinue use of THE APPROVED SYSTEM for that student.

Changes in any LEA student's educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting, provided under this Master Contract may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student's IEP. In the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student's IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student's placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent

agrees otherwise or an interim alternative educational placement is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH.

33. SURROGATE PARENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments.

34. **DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS**

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and hearings, as requested by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal governmental body or agency.

35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of LEA students with appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 *et seq.*; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPPA). CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA.

36. LEA STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall provide to parents at least four written progress reports/report cards. At a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR's place of business shall be submitted to the LEA within 10 days of request. The CONTRACTOR shall provide access to supporting documentation used to determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data sheets, pre/posttests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior support plans. The LEA may request such data at any time within five years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting progress within 5 business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other assessment of the LEA student one month prior to the LEA student's annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the LEA student's present levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. Supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection shall be made available to LEA upon request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all assessment costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All other assessments shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request for CONTRACTOR assessments including the approved timelines, conditions and costs. Such assessment costs may be added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at their sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA. Supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, shall be

determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation of services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each professional's license, certification, or credential.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the LEA student's parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report cards, and/or any assessments, interviews, or meetings. It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP unless otherwise agreed on in writing by the LEA.

It is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil's record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

37. [RESERVED]

38. LEA STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days after CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a LEA student's change of residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA of the LEA student's change of residence as specified in LEA Procedures. Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify CONTRACTOR of the LEA student's change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the LEA student's change of residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered after the LEA student's change of residence.

39. WITHDRAWAL OF LEA STUDENT FROM PROGRAM

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report, by telephone, to the Nonpublic Services Department when a LEA student is withdrawn from school and/or services. CONTRACTOR shall confirm such telephone call on LEA approved forms and submit within five (5) business days as specified in the Nonpublic Services Department Procedural Handbook. CONTRACTOR shall assist LEA to verify and clear potential dropouts three times per year, as required by the 2001 Elementary and Secondary Education Act (No Child Left Behind; NCLB), as documentation of graduation rate is one of the indicators of Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP).

40. PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to LEA students and all facilities including, but not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and LEA student living quarters. CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA students.

CONTRACTORs operating programs with residential components shall cooperate with a parent's reasonable request for LEA student visits in their home during, but not limited to, holidays and weekends. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA.

CONTRACTORS providing services in the student's home as specified in the IEP shall assure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an emergency is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization for emergency situation. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPA service provider. For services provided in a pupil's home as specified in the IEP, must assure that the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written shall also be provided to the LEA.

41. SERVICES AND SUPERVISION AND PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT

If CONTRACTOR provides services on LEA public school campuses, CONTRACTOR shall comply with Penal Code Section 627.1 *et. seq.*, and LEA procedures regarding visitors to school campuses specified by LEA policy and in the LEA Procedures, and the procedures of the campus being visited. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for purchase and provision of the supplies and assessment tools necessary to implement the provision of services on LEA public school campuses.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed along with all procedures for being on campus consistent with school and LEA policy. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the educational program and all nonpublic agency service providers shall work collaboratively with the classroom teacher, who shall remain in charge of the instructional program.

It is understood, that all employees, subcontractors and volunteers of any certified nonpublic agency shall adhere to customary professional standards when providing services. All practices shall be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession. Reports regarding student progress shall be consistent with the provision of the contract.

CONTRACTORS providing services outside of the student's school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA

For services provided in a pupil's home as specified in the IEP, CONTRACTOR must assure that the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written shall also be provided to the LEA.

42. [RESERVED]

43. [RESERVED]

44. MONITORING

CONTRACTOR shall allow access by LEA to its facilities for periodic monitoring of each LEA student's instructional program and shall be invited to participate in the formal review of each student's progress. LEA shall have access to observe each LEA student at work, observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each LEA student's records and progress. Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office.

If CONTRACTOR is also a LCI, LEA shall annually evaluate whether CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("Superintendent") shall monitor CONTRACTOR'S facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall

complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and (3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in the CDE On-site and Self Review and if applicable, LEA Validation Review. This review will address programmatic aspects of the Nonpublic Agency, compliance with relevant state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall complete and submit a Nonpublic Agency Self-Assessment Checklist submitted as specified by the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance.

PERSONNEL

45. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 44237, 35021.1 and 35021.2 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as "CDOJ") and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with LEA students ball not come in contact with LEA students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact who may come into contact with LEA students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237 (h), unless despite the employee's conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). Clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA. In addition, CONTRACTOR shall make a request for subsequent arrest service from the CDOJ as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2.

The passage of AB 389 amends Education Code sections 44237 and 56366.1 as to the verification that the CONTRACTOR has received a successful criminal background check clearance and has enrolled in subsequent arrest notice service, as specified, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. Further this bill deletes the exemption for applicants possessing a valid California state teaching credential or who are currently licensed by another state agency that requires a criminal record summary, from submitting 2 sets of fingerprints for the purpose of obtaining a criminal record summary from the Department of Justice and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notice service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2 for all staff shall be provided upon request.

<u>NON-SOLICITATION OF EMPLOYEES</u>: Not withstanding procedure of State and Federal laws and regulations, Consultant agrees to not solicit for hire, employees of Client for a period not less than one year following last date of that employee's services to Client. Client also agrees to not solicit for hire, employees of Consultant for a period not less than one year following last date of that employee's services to Consultant.

46. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher's scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that each special education teacher meets the Highly Qualified Teacher requirements and holds a full CTC credential authorizing instruction to students with the disabling conditions placed in the teacher's classroom through documentation provided to the CDE. (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and teacher assistants respectively pursuant to Federal requirements and California Education Code sections 45340 *et seq.* and 45350 *et seq.* Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including, but not limited to, instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least 2 years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate's (or higher) degree; or (3) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.

47. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA in writing within thirty (30) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students as specified in the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, permits and/or other documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA updated information regarding the status of licenses, credentials, permits and/or other documents *within than 30 days of known changes*. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within thirty (30) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period during which such person is providing services under this Master Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

48. STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in section seven (7) of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be qualified substitute for their student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative.

49. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME

It is understood, that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified nonpublic agency shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to the CONTRACTOR. Reports regarding student progress shall be consistent with the provision of this contract.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by nonpublic agency providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus consistent with school and LEA policy. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the instructional program.

For services provided in a pupil's home as specified in the IEP, must assure that the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written shall also be provided to the LEA.

HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES

50. HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 *et. seq.*, 49406, and Health and Safety Code Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with an LEA student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code.

51. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to LEA students in facilities that comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning permits; and occupancy capacity. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR's facilities as required complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in, major

modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

52. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423 when CONTRACTOR serves a LEA student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the LEA student with the administration of such medication after the LEA student's parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the LEA student's parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician's statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each LEA student to whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the LEA student's name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR's employee who administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for assuring appropriate staff training in the administration of such medication consistent with physician's written orders. Any change in medication type, administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

53. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours electronically and by U.S. Mail, any accident or incident report to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

54. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et *seq.*, To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e. reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA.

55. SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR's policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures.

56. **REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN**

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by the LEA.

FINANCIAL

57. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an appropriate education for the children enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement the IEP for each and every child.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Contract and in compliance with the LEA Procedures and will be governed by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program service tracking documents and notes for instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly submitted electronically and in addition, on a LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA in the LEA Procedures. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPA administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initial of each student for when the service was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days of LEA's receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond December 31st after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including rebilling issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but

no later than 12 months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or rebilling error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year. SELPA will not pay mileage for NPA employee.

58. **RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT**

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to LEA students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more LEA students enrolled in CONTRACTOR's educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student's change of residence to another district or confirms the change or residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA with five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a LEA student. It is understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that is not received by six months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding paragraph are as follows: (a): the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b): the amount of overpayment; (c): the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided by CONTRACTOR (d): the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e): the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date of the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f): the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided to the LEA student.

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA's withholding payment and the amount to be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA's withholding payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR's time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR's notice within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the LEA's response to CONTRACTOR's notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.

<u>After forty-five (45) business days</u>: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA's Representative of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing within fifteen (15) business days.

<u>After sixty (60) business days</u>: Disagreements between the LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code Section 56366(c) (2).

59. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students.

60. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES

STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in section seven (7) of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. LEA shall not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided shall be included.

STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, it shall notify LEA of the absence of an LEA student no later than the fifth consecutive service day of the student's absence, as specified in the LEA Procedures. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services when a student is absent.

61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-cal/daily service logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing other qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic agency certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll

quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR's offices (to be specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance for such examination or audit. LEA's rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR's offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR's employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the electronic format.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as result of CONTRACTOR's over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA's written notice demanding payment.

62. RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of LEA students that may be enrolled and maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for LEA students who's IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the percentage of a 310-minute instructional day.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR, shall be provided by qualified personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, the Contractor certifies that:

- (a) The Contractor and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are <u>not</u> presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency, and
- (b) Have <u>not</u>, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these offenses.

The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives. This contract is effective on the 1^{st} day of July 2014 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2015, unless sooner terminated as provide herein.

LEA

CONTRACTOR East Bay Family Institute

Signature

Representative

Dr. Lesleigh Franklin CEO Name and Title of Authorized

Nonpublic Agency

By:

By:

Date

Signature	Date
Alex Harp Executive Director	
Name and Title of Authorized	
Representative	

East Bay Innovation Academy

Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to:

Dr. Lesleigh Franklin			
Name East Bay Family Institute			
Nonpublic Agency/Related Service Provider			
411 30 th St. Suite 305			
Address			
City Oakland	State CA	Zip94609	
Phone 415-515-4281 Fax		_	
Email drlesleighfrankli	n@gmail.com		
Notices to LEA shall be addressed to:			
Alex Harp Executive Director			
Name and Title			
LEA East Bay Innovation Academy			
Address 3400 Malcolm	Avenue.		
City Oakland	State CA	Zip94605	
Phone	Fax		
Email aharp@eastbayia.org			
Additional LEA Notifica (Required if completed)			
Name and Title			
Address			
City	State	Zip	
Phone	Fax		
Email			
EXHIBIT A: RATES

EXHIBIT A: RATES			
CONTRACTOR	CONTRACTO	DR NUMBER	2014-2015
(NONPUBLIC AGENCY)			(CONTRACT YEAR)
	, .	TC11 1 4	· · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Per CDE Certification, total enrollment may	not exceed	If blank, the num CDE Certification	nber shall be as determine by on.
Rate Schedule. This rate schedule limits the num amount of the contract. It may also limit the m education and/or related services offered by CC during the term of this contract shall be as follow	aximum number of s ONTRACTOR, and the	tudents that can be	
Payment under this contract may not exceed Total LEA enrollment may not exceed			
		Rate	Period
A. Basic Education Program/Special Education I	nstruction	\$125.00	Hourly
Basic Education Program/Dual Enrollment	<u>instruction</u>	\$125.00	libully
Basic Education Program/Dual Enforment			
Per diem rates for LEA students whose IEPs autho	rize less than a full in	nstructional day sha	all be adjusted proportionally
		isti u eti oli u u g sin	
B. <u>Related Services</u>			
(1) a. Transportation – Round Trip			
b. Transportation – One Way			
c. Transportation – Dual Enrollment			
d. Public Transportation			
e. Parent*			
(2) a. Educational Counseling – Individual			
b. Educational Counseling – Group of			
c. Counseling – Parent	-		
(3) a. Adapted Physical Education – Individual			
b. Adapted Physical Education – Group of			
c. Adapted Physical Education – Group of			
(4) a. Language and Speech Therapy – Individu			
b. Language and Speech Therapy – Group of			
c. Language and Speech Therapy – Group of			
d. Language and Speech Therapy – Group C			
e. Language and Speech – Consultation Rat			
(5) a. SCIA** – Individual (must be authoriz			
b. SCIA – Group of 2			
c. SCIA – Group of 3			
d. Classroom Instructional Assistance – Per	diam or par hour		
	dieni or per nour		
• •			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
b. Occupational Therapy – Group of 2			
c. Occupational Therapy – Group of 3			
d. Occupational Therapy – Group of 4 - 7			
e. Occupational Therapy – Consultation Ra	te		
(8) Physical Therapy		_	
a. Individual			
b. Consultation			
(9) a. Behavior Intervention – BII			
b. Behavior Intervention – BID			
Provided by:	_		
(10) Nursing Services * Parent transportation reimbursement rates are to be determined by			

* Parent transportation reimbursement rates are to be determined by the LEA.

**SCIA – Special Circumstance Instructional Assistance



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (the "Memorandum") made this 2nd day of September, 2014, by and between the Oakland Zoo Education Department (OZED) and the East Bay Innovation Academy (EBIA) regarding ten, half-day conservation classes to be taught by Oakland Zoo Education staff for 6th and 7th grade EBIA students during intersession, October 13-17 and October 20-24, 2014 (the Project).

WHEREAS OZED and EBIA desire to enter into this Memorandum, setting out the terms, conditions, and services to be provided by such understanding and collaboration on the Project as set forth in the attached Scope of Work and Course Description.

1. FUNDING

A. EBIA shall provide the sum of \$2,800.00 to Oakland Zoo Education Department for the creation, planning and teaching of ten, half-day classes as described in the attached SOW and Course Description.

2. TIME PERIOD

This Agreement covers the periods from October 13, 2014 to October 17, 2014, and October 20, 2014 to October 24, 2014. Each class will start at 9:00 AM and end at 1:30 PM. If the Project is extended for additional intersession courses during the 2014/2015 school year, the time period of the Agreement will be modified subject to amendments signed by the two parties.

3. TERMINATION

East Bay Innovation Academy may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, with cause, with a four-week notice of termination. Such notice shall be given in writing.

Signatures of Authorized Representatives

Name: Dr. Joel Parrott Title: President, CEO Organization: Oakland Zoo

Name: Title: Organization:

EBIA Intersession Conservation: From Global to Local Scope of Work and Course Description DRAFT

Program Dates: October 13 – October 17 and October 20 – October 24

Program Times: M-F 9:00 am - 1:30 pm; M-F at OZ

Student Numbers: max 60/week (120 total) + chaperones

Proposed Schedule:

- Day 1:
 - What is a species, a subspecies? How do we decide this...biological species concept Conservation classifications (IUCN), How do we decide what to conserve? Why?
 - 9:00-10:00
 - KD to make PPT presentations on species... and IUCN classifications
 - IUCN research opportunity. Have students split into small groups and use iucnredlist.org to research different categories of endangerment. How do we decide what to conserve? Why?
 - Limitations: year, scope (global),
 - Split into 12 groups of 5 (2 groups research each classification, LC, NT, VU, EN, CR, EW)
 - Research for 1 mammal, bird, reptile, amphibian, fish, plant, arthropods
 - Report on: Classification, justification, range, year published, threats, population, population trend, fun/interesting fact, how to decide what to conserve (why did you choose these animals?)
 - Table groups will work as conservation organization to decide what to conserve (give #'s of EN, CR, VU...)
 - 10:00-11:00
 - Zoo Tour w/ enrichment focus
 - 11:00-12:00
 - o Lunch in meadow draw enrichment animals for each group
 - 12:00-12:30
 - o Observations
 - 12:30-1:00
 - MS to look for/create observation sheet
 - o Wrap-up
 - 1:00-1:30
 - HW research species think about enrichment project ideas
 - MS to find past enrichments projects
 - Discussion on Enrichment, split into small groups (3-4) to research enrichment (zoo tour, previous projects) and pick an animal to work with.
 - Each day work in PM on enrichment project → use science, engineering, art...
 - Observations, research (HW), presentation of idea, materials list, SPIDER model...
 - Why is enrichment important → present a hypothesis

Day 2:

- Zoo Conservation Partners: Proyecto Titi, Giraffe Conservation International, 96 Elephants, Panamanian Golden Frog...
 - 9:00-9:30
 - KD to make PPT slide
- <u>Case Studies</u>: wolves, mountain gorilla, WPT... / <u>Vet Hospital Tour</u>
 - 9:30-12:00
 - MS to work on case studies and contact CB regarding VCH tour
- Lunch in WLT
 - 12:00-12:30
- PM Enrichment Project
 - HW review hypothesis, decide on enrichment make a sketch, needs to engage all senses
 - 12:30-1:30
- Day 3:
 - AM Condor Camp
 - 9:00-11:00
 - MS revising to fit into 1, half-day
 - Lunch
 - 11:00-11:30
 - PM Enrichment Project (if anyone is doing papier-mâché this is good time to do)
 - 11:30-1:30
- Day 4:
 - Creek Day
 - Watershed introduction is the AVC in the same watershed as the EBIA creek?
 9:00-9:30
 - Creek Project w/ hort. native vs. non-native discussion
 - o 9:30-11:30
 - KD to coordinate w/ hort.
 - Creek scavenger hunt in groups binoculars, id sheets...
 - o 11:30-12:00
 - Lunch at creek/TT
 - 12-12:30
 - PM Enrichment
 - 12:30-1:30
- Day 5:
 - AM finishing touches on enrichment, observation sheets
 - 9:00-11:00
 - o Lunch
 - 12:00-12:30
 - PM give out enrichment and observation of behavior
 - 12:30-1:30



EXPAND YOUR UNIVERSE

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Agreement. This document, **dated August 27, 2014**, serves as an Agreement between Chabot Space & Science Center ("CSSC") and East Bay Innovation Academy ("EBIA") for the purposes of working together to develop and implement one, two-week intersession program to be delivered by educational instructors from CSSC, on the EBIA campus, October 13 – 17 & October 20 – 24, 2014.

Relationship of the Parties. The relationship of CSSC and EBIA established by this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is that of independent contractors, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to (a) give either Party the power to direct and control the day-to-day activities of the other Party, or (b) constitute the Parties as partners, joint ventures, co-owners or otherwise as participants in a joint or common undertaking. Neither Party nor its agents or employees are the representative of the other Party for any purpose except as expressly set forth in this Agreement, and has no power or authority as agent, employee or in any other capacity to represent, act for, bind, or otherwise create or assume an obligation on behalf of the other Party for any purpose whatsoever.

1.0 – 1.5 Program Description and Oversight

1.1 Program Description	Intersession IQuest for Space. Weekdays 9am - 4pm.Week OneOctober 13 - 17, 2014Week TwoOctober 20 - 24, 2014
Key Themes	Week 1. Our place in the Universe, Human Exploration, Technology and Innovation, Size and Scale, Communicating and Appreciation of Discovery Week 2. Earth Navigation, Space Navigation, Atmospheres and Light.
Basic Format	Six groups (A, B, C, D, E, F), Two Tracks – Groups A, B, C have morning track from 9:00 – 11:30 am with Chabot programs. Groups D, E, F have afternoon track from 12:30 – 3:00 pm with Chabot programs. All Groups have 60-min lunch period from 11:30 am – 12:30 pm, with 30 minutes for lunch and 30 minutes of lunch program delivered by Chabot staff. 5 CSSC Staff/Instructors to deliver program. See additional attachment for further detail.

10000 Skyline Boulevard Oakland, California 94619 p: (510) 336-7373 f: (510) 336-7491

ChabotSpace.org



78 of 117

EXPAND YOUR UNIVERSE

1.2 Goals & Objectives

nabot

pace & science center

Chabot staff will deliver 10 days of STEM programming to up to 170 students from the East Bay Innovation Academy focused on the themes of space, astronomy, solar system, engineering and design. Project based learning and technology will be integrated into the curriculum throughout, and lessons will be aligned to the Next Generation Science standards.

1.3 Program Inclusions

Program development, basic instructional supplies, curriculum facilitation, class delivery including set up and tear down each day. Four educational instructors will be provided by CSSC daily. Lead Project Manager from CSSC will communicate with Lead PM from EBIA on intersession logistics.

1.4 Program Exclusions

While Chabot will extensively use curriculum and activities it has developed and sourced, there is no agreement to share lesson plans or other proprietary information. There is also no agreement to use the Chabot Space & Science Center facility or provide passes to the Center as part of this project.

1.5 Critical Success Factors

Critical success factors, strategies and evaluation tools include the following:

- Creation and delivery of a well-sequenced, integrated, engaging, technology-rich twoweek experience.
- At the end of each week, the students will synthesize their learning and understanding through a project-based learning activity.
- Students will be given the opportunity to provide written and oral feedback on their experiences that end of each of the two weeks.

2.0 – 2.2 Program Oversight & Roles

2.1 Program Oversight and Responsibility

Chabot Space and Science Center

CSSC will manage the relationship with EBIA and be responsible for managing and fulfillment of the program Agreement. It will manage the development and administration of the Program and will coordinate responsibilities with the other key constituents. CSSC will consult with assigned EBIA lead(s) on content and services during program development. CSSC management will play a lead role in coordination of program duration, flow and scheduling, course activation and determining the final focus of themes, curriculum, and student engagement. CSSC instructors and staff (up to five) will be onsite daily to set up, deliver, and tear down session courses.



EXPAND YOUR UNIVERSE

East Bay Innovation Academy

EBIA will collaborate and with the CSSC Intersession Lead on facility logistics and student conduct expectations. EBIA will recruit parent and community volunteers (2 for each room) to assist the CSSC staff.

2.2 Roles & Responsibilities This is to be specifically defined as needed upon mutual agreement.

3.0 EBIA's Financial Responsibility

habot

space & science center

East Bay Innovation Academy will pay Chabot Space & Science Center a sum of \$17,500 as a fee for services as outlined in this agreement. The fee shall be invoiced as follows:

- 50% (\$8,750) payment shall be due by October 1, 2014
- 50% (8,750) payment shall be due by October 13, 2014

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

Alexander Harp, Executive Director	Jill K. Rapposelli, COO/CFO
East Bay Innovation Academy	Chabot Space & Science Center
Signature:	Signature:
Date:	Date:

Please return this signed AGREEMEN	sterrill@chabotspace.org	to confirm this event.
------------------------------------	--------------------------	------------------------

Title:

Chabot Space & Science Center[o] 510-336-7385[e] sterrill@chabotspace.org[c] 415-302-8688Completed by:Susan Terrill(electronic signature)Date: 8/27/2014

Title:



Name of LEA: <u>East Bay Innovation Academy</u> Name of NPS: <u>Maxim Healthcare Services</u>, Inc., d/b/a Maxim Staffing Solutions

<u>Non-Residential</u> Nonpublic, nonsectarian School Services

MASTER CONTRACT

2014-2015

(Revised 04/2014)

Non-Residential NPS Master Contract - Page 1

81 of 11

East Bay Innovation Academy - Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 17, 2014 at 8:00 PM_



TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

	ALATER CONTRACT	5
1.	MASTER CONTRACT	5
2.	CERTIFICATION	5
3.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS	6
4.	TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT	0
5.	INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT	6
	FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION	7
6.	INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT	7
7.	DEFINITIONS	/

II. ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

8.	NOTICES
9.	MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS
10.	SEVERABILITY CLAUSE
	SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST
12.	VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW
13.	MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES
14.	TERMINATION
15.	INSURANCE
16.	INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS
17.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
18.	SUBCONTRACTING
19.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
20.	NON-DISCRIMINATION

III. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

21.	FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION
22.	GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION
23.	INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES
24.	CLASS SIZE
	CALENDARS
26.	DATA REPORTING
27.	LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT
28.	STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING AND HIGH SCHOOL
	EXIT EXAMINATION
	LEA MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS
30.	POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS
31.	STUDENT DISCIPLINE
32	IEP TEAM MEETINGS

		20
	SURROGATE PARENTS	20
34.	DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS	20
	COMPLAINT PROCEDURES	20
36.	LEA STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARD	20
	AND ASSESSMENTS	21
37.	TRANSCRIPTS	21
38.	LEA STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE	21
39.	WITHDRAWAL OF LEA STUDENT FROM PROGRAM	- 21
40	PARENT ACCESS	
41	SERVICES AND SUPERVISION ON PUBLIC SCHOOL CAMPUSES	22
42.	LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION CONTRACTORS	- 23
43.	. STATE MEAL MANDATE	23
	MONITORING	

IV. PERSONNEL

2.52	THE ADAL DECURPTION OF A	23
	CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS	24
46.	STAFF QUALIFICATIONS	
47.	VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND	25
	OTHER DOCUMENTS	25
	STAFF ABSENCE	25
10	STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR	20

V. HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES

50. HEALTH AND SAFETY	26
SU. HEALTH AND SAFETT	26
51. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATION	26
52. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION	20
53. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING	20
54. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING	27
55. SEXUAL HARASSMENT	27
56. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN	L 1

VI. FINANCIAL

57. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING AND BILLING PROCEDURES	27
58. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT	28
59. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES	29
60. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES	30
61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT	50
62. RATE SCHEDULE	31
63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION	31
EXHIBIT A: RATES	54



CONTRACT NUMBER:

LEA: East Bay Innovation Academy

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL: Maxim Healthcare Services, Inc., d/b/a Maxim Staffing Solutions

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT

AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract is entered into this 26th day of <u>August</u>, 2014, between <u>East Bay Innovation Academy</u> (hereinafter referred to as "LEA") and <u>Maxim Healthcare Services</u>, Inc., <u>d/b/a Maxim Staffing Solutions</u> (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR") for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to LEA students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 *et seq.* and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 *et seq.*, AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this agreement does not commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA an Individual Services Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA") and a Nonpublic Services Student Enrollment form as specified in the LEA Procedures. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all services specified in the student's Individualized Education Plan (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days of an LEA student's enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each LEA student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and /or electronic data base for ISA developing including invoicing.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the LEA student's parent.

2. CERTIFICATION

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a nonpublic, nonsectarian school. All nonpublic school services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 *et seq* and within the professional scope of practice of each providers license, certification and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR's nonpublic school certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this contract is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated in Section 24 of the Master Contract.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

With respect to CONTRACTOR's certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this contract unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies, and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss and costs (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to, the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, LEA student enrollment and transfer, LEA student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE nonpublic school certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a).

4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. However, the parties acknowledge that any subsequent Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2015. In the event the contract is not renegotiated by June 30th, an interim contract may be made available as mutually agreed upon for up to 90 days from July 1 of the new fiscal year. (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of the LEA.

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR's ownership or authorized representative shall be provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized representative.

5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes the LEA Procedures and each Individual Services Agreement and they are incorporated herein by this reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the LEA may modify the LEA procedures from time to time without the consent of CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract or a renewal.

At a minimum such information shall include copies of teacher credentials and clearance, insurance documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the application packet is not completed and returned to LEA, no Master Contract will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract's effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such ninety day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized LEA students at the discretion of the LEA.

6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This contract shall include an ISA developed for each LEA student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for LEA students enrolled with the approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized LEA students.

Any and all changes to a LEA student's educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the LEA student's IEP. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a LEA student's parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a LEA student's IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) business days of the last date a service was provided.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, CONTRACTOR shall abide by the "stay-put" requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees otherwise or an interim alternative educational placement is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code section 56366(c) (2).

7. DEFINITIONS

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

 The term "CONTRACTOR" means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school certified by the California Department of Education and its officers, agents, employees.

- b. The term "authorized LEA representative" means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for nonpublic school. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Plan Local Area (SELPA) of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA maintains sole responsibility for the contract, unless otherwise specified in the contract
- c. The term "credential" means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(j).
- d. The term "qualified" means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and designated instruction and services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which he or she is providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (y)).

- e The term "license" means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services, including but not limited to mental health and board and care services at a residential placement, or refer to themselves using a specified professional title. If a license is not available through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(r).
- f. The term "parent" means a biological or adoptive parent unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal authority to make educational decisions for the child, a guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent or authorized to make educational decisions for the child, an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the child's welfare, a surrogate parent, a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child's behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2). Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the nonpublic school under contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education Code section 56028).
- g. The term "days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified.
- h. The phrase "billable day" means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs.

- i. The phrase "billable day of attendance" means a school day as defined in California Education Code Section 46307, in which a LEA student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA.
- It is understood that the term "Master Contract" also means "Agreement" and is referred to as such in this document.

ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

8. NOTICES

All notices provided for by this contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of the Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this Master Contract.

9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, "records" shall include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, and bus aides; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic school certifications by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain LEA student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of CONTRACTOR's employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an access log for each LEA student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving information from the LEA student's record. Such log need record access to the LEA student's records by: (a) the LEA student's parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the LEA student's parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student For purposes of this paragraph, "employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR" do not include records. subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant parents access to student records, and comply with parents' requests for copies of student records, as required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school closure, to forward LEA student records within ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, and reports. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five (5) business days.

10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR's successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control.

12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the County where the LEA is located.

13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking modification shall provide thirty (30) days' notice of any such changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based.

14. TERMINATION

This Master Contract or Individual Service Agreement may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice California Education Code section 56366(a)(4). At the time of termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 5 or 6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

15. INSURANCE

Contractor shall, at his, her, or its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of this Agreement, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with Contractor's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:

PART I

- A. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:
 - \$3,000,000 per occurrence
 - \$ 500,000 fire damage
 - \$ 5,000 medical expenses
 - \$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury

\$6,000,000 general aggregate \$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR's policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such coverage.

B. Business Auto Liability Insurance for all owned scheduled, non-owned or hired automobiles with a \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus services, the required coverage limit is \$5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

C. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance in a form and amount covering Contractor's full liability under the California Workers' Compensation Insurance and Safety Act and in accordance with applicable state and federal laws.

> Part A – Statutory Limits Part B - \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000/\$1,000,000 Employers Liability.

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, <u>including</u> Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

> \$3,000,000 per occurrence \$6,000,000 general aggregate

- E. Contractor, upon execution of this contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall *name* the LEA and the Board of Education as additional insured's premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by Contractor and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR's obligations under this contract at no additional charge.
- F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above \$100,000 must be declared to and approved by the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR's sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.
- G. For any claims related to the services, the CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or selfinsurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- H. All Certificates of Insurance shall reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate.

CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to any compensation for any special education and/or DIS provided to any pupil for any period during which CONTRACTOR failed to fully comply with this Section 15.

PART II

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY ("RTC")

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school affiliated with a residential treatment center (NPS/RTC), the following insurance policies are required:

- A. Commercial General Liability coverage of \$3,000,000 per Occurrence and \$6,000,000 in General Aggregate. The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as named additional insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC's insurance primary despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC's policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-Insured Retention above \$100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA.
- B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000/000/\$1,000,000.
- C. Commercial Auto Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus services, the required coverage limit is \$5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.
- D. Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be \$250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured retention.
- E. Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/MALPRACTICE coverage with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.
- F. Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that changes in insurance coverage obligations under this section is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.

16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by the law, LEA agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless CONTRACTOR and its officers, agents and employees against all liability, loss and costs (including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising from actions, suits, claims or demands attributable solely and exclusively to acts or omissions of LEA, and LEA's officers, agents and employees, in performance of this Agreement.

To the fullest extent allowed by the law, CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless LEA and its officers, agents and employees against all liability, loss and costs (including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising from actions, suits, claims or demands attributable (a) solely and exclusively to acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR, and CONTRACTOR's officers, agents and employees, in performance of this Agreement, (b) to CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies, as provided for in Section 3, above, or (c) to LEA being held to be a partner, joint venturer, co-principle, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, as provided for in Section 17, below.

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the state of California, that the selfinsurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its self-insurance covers LEA's indemnification obligations under this Master Contract.

17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this Agreement as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.

If the LEA is held to be a partner, joint venturer, co-principle, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that holding, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

The parties' indemnity and coverage obligations shall survive the termination of this Agreement with respect to any claim arising from the parties' actual or alleged performance or non-performance of their respective rights, privileges or obligations existing under this Agreement.

18. SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR's original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the provision of special education and/or related services (including without limitation transportation) for any LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term of each subcontract. Such subcontractor's insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms provided by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor's work commences. The insurance or liability coverage agreements shall name the LEA and all proposed indemnitees as additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract. All Certificates of Insurance shall reference the LEA contract number, name of the school submitting the certificate, indication of NPS status, and the location of the school submitting the certificate. In addition, all sub-contractors must meet the requirements as contained in section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.

19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as

a student's advocate. Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at CONTRACTOR's facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest.

Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, LEA shall neither execute an ISA with CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a LEA student when a recommendation for special education and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR to the LEA student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e. before or after the LEA student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR's school) or whether an assessment of the LEA student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as "IEE") and its recommendations, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide services through the evaluator whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private pay or tuition free "scholarship" basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings.

20. NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of race, religion, sex, national origin, age, sexual orientation, or disability in employment or operation of its programs.

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION

LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan (hereinafter referred to as "ITP") of each LEA student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide to each LEA student special education and/or related services (including transition services) within the nonpublic school consistent with the LEA student's IEP and as specified in the ISA. CONTRACTOR shall not accept a LEA student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined in the student's IEP. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease. Pursuant to California Education Code section 56366(b), transportation shall not be provided through the use of services or equipment owned, leased, or contracted by the LEA for students served by CONTRACTOR unless those services and equipment are provided directly or subcontracted by the CONTRACTOR.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities for LEA students, as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related services as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the LEA student's enrollment under the terms of this Master Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities when specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the nonpublic school. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment, which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations. CONTRACTOR may charge a LEA student's parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the LEA student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the LEA student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the LEA student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility as specified in the LEA Procedures.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the LEA student to receive a free appropriate public education shall not interfere with the LEA student's receipt of special education and/or related services as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

All nonpublic school services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 *et seq.*, and shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment, which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations.

CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent with LEA's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. LEA students shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted standards-based, core curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive; and provide standards - aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by the LEA, that contracts with the nonpublic school: (b) college preparation courses; (c) extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college counseling. When appropriate, CONTRACTOR shall utilize the Special Education Administrators of County Officers ("SEACO") Curriculum Guide for students with moderate to severe disabilities who participate in California Alternative Performance Assessment ("CAPA"). Applicable students shall have access to the core content, activities, and instructional materials delineated within the SEACO Guide. CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction shall be described in writing and a copy provided to LEA prior to the effective date of this Master Contract.

When CONTRACTOR serves LEA students in grades nine through twelve inclusive, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading toward graduation or completion of LEA's diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high school diploma to LEA students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA's graduation requirements, including, but not limited to, passing the California High School Exit Exam (CAHSEE) or meeting CAHSEE exception/waiver requirements per state guidelines.

For students placed in mental health treatment facilities, CONTRACTOR shall complete a Mental Health Treatment Plan ("Treatment Plan") for each student receiving program services. The Treatment Plan shall provide overall direction for the collaborative work of the student, the program and goals as agreed upon in the student's IEP. The Treatment Plan shall meet Medi-Cal (if applicable) and other applicable Federal, State and local laws, rules, manuals, policies, guidelines, and directives. The Treatment Plan shall include: (a) student's treatment goals in accordance with student's IEP which guide the service delivery process and describe the skills and behaviors that the student will be able to learn as a result of the program's behavioral interventions; and (b) interventions planned to help the student reach his or her goals.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure staff providing services to students in mental health treatment facilities to students with emotional disturbance (ED), and agree that all staff shall adhere to professionally recognized best practices for rehabilitation assessment, service planning, and service delivery, and shall become proficient in the principles and practices of Integrated Dual Disorders Treatment. Staff hired to work

directly with students with ED shall have competence and experience in working with high-risk mental health students. Further, it is agreed that LEA may request that CONTRACTOR's staff be immediately removed from working on the Contract for good cause during the term of the Contract. Disqualification, if any, of CONTRACTOR staff, pursuant to this section, shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of its obligation to complete all work in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract.

23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

The total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided to LEA students at like grade level, attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the LEA student's ISA developed in accordance with the LEA student's IEP.

For LEA students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch, and passing time, shall be at least 314 instructional minutes.

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual instructional minutes provided to LEA students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's IEP.

24. CLASS SIZE

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing. Upon prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to provide services to students with disabilities.

In the event CONTRACTOR is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, and the vacancy has direct impact on the California Department of Education Certification of that school, the nonpublic school shall develop a plan to assure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated staff. The nonpublic school and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may be increased to assure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties.

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between the ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 *et seq.*

25. CALENDARS

The CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a school calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed ______ regular school year (RSY) days, plus up to ______ extended school year (ESY) days as determined by LEA's calendar. Billable days shall include only those days that are included in the submitted and approved school calendar, and shall not exceed number of days in LEA's approved calendar and/or required by the IEP for each LEA student. In the event the LEA adjusts the number school days for the regular school year and/or extended school year, the approved number of days shall become the total billable days for the nonpublic school. In which case, an amended calendar shall be provided by CONTRACTOR for LEA approval.

Unless otherwise specified by the students' IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A student shall only be eligible for extended school year services if such are recommended by his/her IEP Team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP Team convened by the LEA. Any days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing,

prior to the start of the extended school year. Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school year and actually received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any nonpublic school service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, may include Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Cesar Chavez Day, President's Day, Memorial Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by LEA.

26. DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide all data related to student information and billing information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide all data related to any and sections of this contract and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all CONTRACTORS shall utilize the Special Education Information System (SEIS) or comparable system approved by the LEA and SELPA for all IEP development and progress reporting. Additional progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTORS with approved forms and/or format for such data including but not limited to invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may approve use of CONTRACTORS provided forms at their discretion.

27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive Environment ("LRE") options and/or Dual Enrollment options for students to have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team's recommendations activities to support the transition.

28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING AND HIGH SCHOOL EXIT EXAMINATION

Per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer all Statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress ("CAASP"), Desired Results Developmental Profile ("DRDP"), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, California English Language Development Test ("CELDT"), and the California High School Exit Examination, as appropriate to the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code section 52052, in the same manner as public schools and each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR

by the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program. LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR's qualified staff, CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA. Contractor shall report the test results to the CDE as required by Education Code section 56366(a)(8)(A).

29. LEA MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, and standardized testing. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 56521.5 regarding positive behavior interventions. LEA students who exhibit serious behavioral challenges must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal law and its implementing regulations. If the individualized education program ("IEP") team determines that a student's behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a BIP, the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student's behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 regarding emergency interventions and Behavioral Emergency Reports. Evidence of such training shall be submitted to the LEA at the beginning of the school year and within 6 days of any new hire. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff members are trained annually in crisis intervention and emergency procedures as related to appropriate behavior management strategies. Training includes certification with <u>Crisis Prevention Intervention</u> (CPI) or a similarly recognized and approved crisis intervention program.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1 emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP), and instead may only be used to control behavior that is unpredictable and spontaneous. For an emergency intervention to be used, the behavior must pose a clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others. Before emergency interventions may be applied, the behavior must be of the kind that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. Emergency intervention shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER when an emergency occurs that is defined as a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of LEA student, self, or others and a physical intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. Emergencies require a BER form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for administrative action. CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. If the student's IEP does not contain a Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP), CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA an IEP meeting within two (2) days to review the BER, determine if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral

assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective.

CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for any of the following prohibited interventions, or any other intervention similar to or like the following: (a) locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room; (b) employment of a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, except that techniques such as prone containment may be used as an emergency intervention by staff trained in those procedures; (c) an amount of force that exceeds that which is reasonable and necessary under the circumstances, pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1(d)(1-3).

31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with state and federal law and regulations.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a LEA student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA and a manifestation IEP team meeting shall be scheduled. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the LEA student's name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such disciplinary action. A copy of the LEA student's behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10th) day of suspension. CONTRACTOR shall notify and invite LEA representatives to the IEP team meeting where the manifestation determination will be made.

32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the nonpublic school; and (3) whether changes to the student's IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code Sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)). If an LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document, if appropriate, a description of activities provided to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each LEA student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding LEA students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student's IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR'S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this Master Contract unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the LEA.

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the *approved electronic IEP system of the LEA such as* the Special Education Information System (SEIS) for all IEP planning and progress reporting. The SELPA shall provide training for any NPS to assure access to THE APPROVED SYSTEM. The NPS and/or NPS shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on THE APPROVED SYSTEM and shall protect

the password requirements of the system. When a student disenrolls from the NPS, the NPS shall discontinue use of THE APPROVED SYSTEM for that student.

Changes in any LEA student's educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting, provided under this Master Contract may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student's IEP. In the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student's IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student's placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent agrees otherwise or an interim alternative educational placement is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH.

33. SURROGATE PARENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments.

34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and hearings, as requested by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal governmental body or agency.

35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of LEA students with appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 *et seq.*; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPPA). CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA.

36. LEA STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall provide to parents at least four written progress reports/report cards. At a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR's place of business shall be submitted to the LEA within 10 days of request. CONTRACTOR shall provide access to supporting documentation used to determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior support plans. The LEA may request such data at any time within five years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting progress within 5 business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other assessment of the LEA student one month prior to the LEA student's annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the LEA student's present levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. Supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection shall be made available to LEA upon request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all assessment costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All other assessments shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request for CONTRACTOR assessments

including the approved timelines, conditions and costs. Such assessment costs may be added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at their sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the LEA student's parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report cards, and/or any assessments, interviews, or meetings unless otherwise agreed on in writing by the LEA.

It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil's record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

37. TRANSCRIPTS

CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, or upon LEA student transfer, for LEA students in grades nine through twelve inclusive, and submit them on LEA approved forms to the LEA student's school of residence, for evaluation of progress toward completion of diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of LEA students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA.

38. LEA STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days after CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a LEA student's change of residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA of the LEA student's change of residence as specified in LEA Procedures. Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify CONTRACTOR of the LEA student's change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the LEA student's change of residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered after the LEA student's change of residence.

39. WITHDRAWAL OF LEA STUDENT FROM PROGRAM

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report, by telephone, to the Nonpublic Services Department when a LEA student is withdrawn from school and/or services. CONTRACTOR shall confirm such telephone call on LEA approved forms and submit within five (5) business days as specified in the Nonpublic Services Department Procedural Handbook. CONTRACTOR shall assist LEA to verify and clear potential dropouts three times per year, as required by the 2001 Elementary and Secondary Education Act (No Child Left Behind; NCLB), as documentation of graduation rate is one of the indicators of Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP).

40. PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to LEA students and all facilities including, but not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and LEA student living quarters. CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA students.

CONTRACTORs operating programs with residential components shall cooperate with a parent's reasonable request for LEA student visits in their home during, but not limited to, holidays and weekends. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA at least thirty (30) days in advance.

CONTRACTORS providing services in the student's home as specified in the IEP shall assure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an emergency is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization for emergency situation. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS service provider.

For services provided in a pupil's home as specified in the IEP, must assure that the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written shall also be provided to the LEA.

41. SERVICES AND SUPERVISION AND PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT

If CONTRACTOR provides services on LEA public school campuses, CONTRACTOR shall comply with Penal Code Section 627.1 *et. seq.*, and LEA procedures regarding visitors to school campuses specified by LEA policy and in the LEA Procedures, and the procedures of the campus being visited. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for purchase and provision of the supplies and assessment tools necessary to implement the provision of services on LEA public school campuses.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed along with all procedures for being on campus consistent with school and LEA policy. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the educational program and all nonpublic school service providers shall work collaboratively with the classroom teacher, who shall remain in charge of the instructional program.

It is understood, that all employees, subcontractors and volunteers of any certified nonpublic school shall adhere to customary professional standards when providing services. All practices shall be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession. Reports regarding student progress shall be consistent with the provision of the contract.

For services provided in a pupil's home as specified in the IEP, CONTRACTOR must assure that the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written shall also be provided to the LEA.

42. LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION CONTRACTORS

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9, Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b), AB 1858, AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and the procedures set forth in the LEA Procedures. A LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its nonpublic school as a condition of being placed in its residential facility.

If CONTRACTOR is owned, operated by, or associated with a residential treatment center (hereinafter referred to as "NPS/RTC"), CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1412(a)(1)(A) and Education Code section 56000, et seq.; amended and reorganized by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA), 20 U.S.C. section 1401(29); Education Code section 56031; Cal. Code Regs., tit. 5, section 3001 et seq., Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, section 60100 et seq. regarding the provision of counseling services, including residential care for students to receive a FAPE as set forth in the LEA student's IEPs.

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all LEA students, including those identified as eligible for special education. For those identified special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education eligibility at the time of enrollment and 2) the educational placement and services specified in each student's IEP at the time of enrollment.

Unless placement is made pursuant to a Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the LEA student's parent or another adult with educational decision- making rights.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

43. STATE MEAL MANDATE

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under California Education Code sections 49530, 49530.5 and 49550.

44. MONITORING

CONTRACTOR shall allow access by LEA to its facilities for periodic monitoring of each LEA student's instructional program and shall be invited to participate in the formal review of each student's progress. LEA shall have access to observe each LEA student at work, observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each LEA student's records and progress. Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office.

If CONTRACTOR is also a LCI, LEA shall annually evaluate whether CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("Superintendent") shall monitor CONTRACTOR'S facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and (3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in the CDE On-site and Self Review and if applicable, LEA Validation Review. This review will address programmatic aspects of the Nonpublic School, compliance with relevant state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall complete and submit a Nonpublic School Self-Assessment Checklist submitted as specified by the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance.

CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California Education Code Section 33126.

PERSONNEL

45. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 44237, 35021.1 and 35021.2 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as "CDOJ") and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation

(hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with LEA students shall not come in contact with LEA students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contractors who may come into contact with LEA students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee's conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). Clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA. In addition, CONTRACTOR shall make a request for subsequent arrest service from the CDOJ as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2.

The passage of AB 389 amends Education Code sections 44237 and 56366.1 as to the verification that the CONTRACTOR has received a successful criminal background check clearance and has enrolled in subsequent arrest notice service, as specified, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. Further this bill deletes the exemption for applicants possessing a valid California state teaching credential or who are currently licensed by another state agency that requires a criminal record summary, from submitting 2 sets of fingerprints for the purpose of obtaining a criminal record summary from the Department of Justice and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notice service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2 for all staff shall be provided upon request.

46. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher's scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that each special education teacher meets the Highly Qualified Teacher requirements and holds a full and valid non-expired CTC credential authorizing instruction to students with the disabling conditions placed in the teacher's classroom through documentation provided to the CDE. (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

CONTRACTOR will designate an appropriately qualified person who will serve as the curricular and instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and teacher assistants respectively pursuant to Federal requirements and California Education Code sections 45340 *et seq.* and 45350 *et seq.* Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including, but not limited to, instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least 2 years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate's (or higher) degree; or (3) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or

local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

47. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA in writing within thirty (30) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students as specified in the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, permits and/or other documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA updated information regarding the status of licenses, credentials, permits and/or other documents *within than 30 days of known changes*. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within thirty (30) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period during which such person is providing services under this Master Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

48. STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR's classroom teacher is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage on LEA substitute teacher log. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA shall not be responsible for payment for instruction and/or services when an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher is not provided.

49. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR IN THE HOME

It is understood, that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified nonpublic school shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to the CONTRACTOR. Reports regarding student progress shall be consistent with the provision of this contract. For services provided in a pupil's home as specified in the IEP, must assure that the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written shall also be provided to the LEA.

HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES

50. HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 *et. seq.*, 49406, and Health and Safety Code Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with an LEA student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code.

51. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to LEA students in facilities that comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning permits; and occupancy capacity. CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR's facilities as required complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

52. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423 when CONTRACTOR serves a LEA student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the LEA student with the administration of such medication after the LEA student's parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the LEA student's parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician's statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each LEA student to whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the LEA student's name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR's employee who administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for assuring appropriate staff training in the administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

53. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours electronically and by U.S. Mail, any accident or incident report to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

54. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et *seq.*, To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e. reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA.

55. SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR's policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures.

56. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by the LEA.

FINANCIAL

57. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the school has the necessary financial resources to provide an appropriate education for the children enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement the IEP for each and every child.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Contract and in compliance with the LEA Procedures and will be governed by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program service tracking documents and notes for instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly submitted electronically and in addition, on a LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA in the LEA Procedures. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initial of each student for when the service was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days of LEA's receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond December 31st after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including rebilling issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but no later than 12 months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or rebilling error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year. SELPA will not pay mileage for NPS employee.

58. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to LEA students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more LEA students enrolled in CONTRACTOR's educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student's change of residence to another district or confirms the change or residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA with five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a LEA student. It is understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that is not received by six months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety

(90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding paragraph are as follows: (a): the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b): the amount of overpayment; (c): the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided by CONTRACTOR (d): the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e): the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date of the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f): the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided to the LEA student.

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA's withholding payment and the amount to be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA's withholding payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR's time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR's notice within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the LEA's response to CONTRACTOR's notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.

<u>After forty-five (45) business days</u>: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA's Representative of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing within fifteen (15) business days.

After sixty (60) business days: Disagreements between the LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code Section 56366(c) (2).

59. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students.

60. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES

STAFF ABSENCE

Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher.

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in section seven (7) of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in LEA student's IEP.

STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, no later than the tenth (10) cumulative day of a LEA student's unexcused absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence as specified in the LEA Procedures.

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one day of attendance as defined in California Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. *Per Diem* rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of DIS or related services for days on which a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-up services.

For students whose parents reside in the district and for students residing in Licensed Children's Institutions or Foster Family Homes, the LEA shall reimburse CONTRACTOR for five (5) excused absences per semester. The aforementioned reimbursement/payment will be reduced by the local daily revenue amount of \$33.25.

61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing other qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic school certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR's offices (to be specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance for such examination or audit. LEA's rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR's offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR's employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the electronic format.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as result of CONTRACTOR's over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA's written notice demanding payment.

62. RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of LEA students that may be enrolled and maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for LEA students who's IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the percentage of a 310-minute instructional day.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR, shall be provided by qualified personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school associated with a Residential Treatment Center (NPS/RTC), CONTRACTOR will ensure that all Educationally Related Mental Health Services (ERMHS) are provided in an integrated, intensive, educationally related therapeutic residential setting; which includes social emotional/behavior support through individual counseling, group counseling, family consultation and support, as appropriate. It is a collaborative model which includes educational professionals and related service providers, where all supports and services are integrated in the NPS/RTC program. Educationally Related Mental Health Services (ERMHS) costs are all inclusive and combined with the daily rate as ERMHS+RB (ERMHS + Room and Board). ERMHS plus Room and Board payments are based on Positive attendance (payable for up to a maximum of 365 days) only, with up to a maximum of 10 days payment per student, per contract year, when a bed is unoccupied, for home visits of a therapeutic nature.

63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, the Contractor certifies that:

- (a) The Contractor and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are <u>not</u> presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency, and
- (b) Have <u>not</u>, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these offenses.

The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives. This contract is effective on the <u>1st</u> day of July 2014 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2015, unless sooner terminated as provide herein.

CONTRACTOR, Maxim Healthcare Services, Inc., d/b/a Maxim Staffing Solutions	LEA	
Nonpublic School		
By: Signature Jessa Lombo, Assistant Regional Controller	Signature	Date
Name and Title of Authorized Representative	Name and Title of Authorized Representative	

Non-Residential INFS Master Contract - Page 32

Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to:

Maxim Healthcare Se	ervices, Inc.		
Name			
Attn: Contracts Depa	artment		
Nonpublic School			
7227 Lee Deforest I	Drive		
Address Columbia, MD 2104	46		
City	State	Zip	
(410) 910-1596	(410)	910-1515	
Phone jekarko@maxhealth	Fax 1.com		
Email			
Notices to LEA shall	l be addressed to:	:	
Name and Title			
LEA			
Address			
City	State	Zip	
Phone		Fax	
Email			
Additional LEA No (Required if compl	The Laboratory of the		
Name and Title			
Address			
City	State	Zip	
Phone		Fax	
Email			

EXHIBIT A: RATES FOR Non-RESIDENTIAL NPS PLACEMENTS

CONT	RACTOR Maxim Healthcare Services, CONTRACTOR	R NUMBER	2014-2015	
Inc., d/	b/a Maxim Staffing Solutions		(CONTRACT Y	
	DE Certification, total enrollment may not exceed	CDE Certificat		
the contra and/or re	edule. This rate schedule limits the number of LEA students the act. It may also limit the maximum number of students that lated services offered by CONTRACTOR, and the charges for his contract shall be as follows:	nat may be enroll can be provided or such educatio	ed and the maximum doll specific services. Spec nal and/or related service	ar amount of ial education es during the
Payme Total L	nt under this contract may not exceed EA enrollment may not exceed			
		Rate	Period	
Basi	c Education Program/Special Education Instruction ic Education Program/Dual Enrollment			
Per d	iem rates for LEA students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructiona	l day shall be adjuste	d proportionally.	
	a. Transportation – Round Trip	_		
(1)	b. Transportation – One Way			
	c. Transportation – Dual Enrollment			
	d. Public Transportation			
	e. Parent*			
	a. Educational Counseling – Individual			
(2)	a. Educational Courseling - Mervielda	-		
	 b. Educational Counseling – Group of 			
	c. Counseling – Parent	-		
(3)	a. Adapted Physical Education - Individual	-		
	b. Adapted Physical Education – Group of			
	c. Adapted Physical Education - Group of	5- -		
(4)	a. Language and Speech Therapy - Individual	-		
	b. Language and Speech Therapy – Group of 2	-		
	c. Language and Speech Therapy - Group of 3	-		
	d. Language and Speech Therapy - Per diem	-		
	e. Language and Speech - Consultation Rate			
(5)	a. SCIA** – Individual (must be authorized on IEP)	-		
	b. SCIA – Group of 2			
	c. SCIA – Group of 3			
	d. Classroom Instructional Assistance - Per diem or per hour			
(6)	Intensive Special Education Instruction***			
(7)	a. Occupational Therapy - Individual	-		
	b. Occupational Therapy – Group of 2			
	c. Occupational Therapy - Group of 3			
	d. Occupational Therapy - Group of 4 - 7			
	e. Occupational Therapy - Consultation Rate			
(8)	Physical Therapy			
	a. Individual			
	b. Consultation			
(9)	a. Behavior Intervention – BII			
	 Behavior Intervention – BID 			
	Provided by:		\$50.00 Per hour	•
(10)	Nursing Services		\$62.00 Per hour	
28-07-080	District RN		\$30.00 Per hou	
	CNA/Aide		\$78.50 Per hou	
	Hearing and Vision RN			

Parent transportation reimbursement rates are to be determined by the LEA.
 **SCIA – Special Circumstance Instructional Assistance
 *** By Credentialed Special Education Teacher.

10	6	RD [®]	ERTI	FIC	ATE OF LIAE	BILI		SURA	NCE	8/2	(MM/DD/YYYY) 9/2014
BEL	OW RES	ERTIFICATE IS ISSUE ICATE DOES NOT A . THIS CERTIFICATE SENTATIVE OR PROD	ED AS A MA FFIRMATIVE OF INSUR DUCER, AND	ATTER	OF INFORMATION ONLY R NEGATIVELY AMEND, F DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.	AND CO EXTEND E A CO	ONFERS NO OR ALTE NTRACT B	RIGHTS UI R THE COV ETWEEN TH	PON THE CERTIFICAT ERAGE AFFORDED B E ISSUING INSURER(S), A	UTHORIZED
the	torn	ANT: If the certifications and conditions of the holder in lieu of su	he policy, c	ertain	DITIONAL INSURED, the p policies may require an end	dorsem	ant. A state	endorsed. In ement on this	s certificate does not co	onfer	rights to the
		ate holder in lieu of st	ch endorse	menula		CONTACT	Krista I	Dean			
RODU		Partners, Inc				PHONE	(610)	526-9130	FAX (A/C, No);	610) 5	26-2021
		nestoga Road				E-MAIL	certific	cates@alt	uspartners.com		
		ng 3, Suite 1:	1			CUSTOME	RID#00000	0042			NAIC #
Ros			PA 190	10			INSL	S of Lon			2623/623
NSUR	ED			Tng		INSURER	A:LIOYO	erican I	ns Co.		22667
		Healthcare Sem Maxim Staffing			-	INSURER	.Indemn	ity Ins	Co of NA		43575
d/b	/a	ee DeForest D	y SOLUCI rive	Und		INSURER	Federa	1 Insura	nce Company		20281
		bia MD 21046	1140		-	INSURER	E:				
	_					INSURER	Std+XS	F	REVISION NUMBER:		
COV	ER/	AGES	CERT	IFICA	TE NUMBER: 13-14 Staf	VE BEEN	ISSUED TO	THE INCLUSE	D NAMED ABOVE FOR T	HE P	OLICY PERIOD
IND	DICA'	TED. NOTWITHSTANDI	NG ANY REC	DIREN	SURANCE LISTED BELOW HAY MENT, TERM OR CONDITION N, THE INSURANCE AFFORD ES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE	ED BY T	HE POLICIE	S DESCRIBED	D HEREIN IS SUBJECT 1	O AL	O WHICH THIS
INSR		TYPE OF INSURANC	A	NSR W	BR	0	MM/DD/YYYY)	POLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)	Limit	-	3,000,000
LIR	GEN	ERAL LIABILITY							EACH OCCURRENCE	5	100,000
Ì	x	COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIA	BILITY		PH1303923		1/30/2013	11/30/2014	PREMISES (Ea occurrence)	5	10,000
A		X CLAIMS-MADE	OCCUR			-	1/30/2013		MED EXP (Any one person) PERSONAL & ADV INJURY	5	1,000,000
	х	\$3,000,000 SIR						2	GENERAL AGGREGATE	5	3,000,000
								Products	PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG	5	3,000,000
	GEN	LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLI						Exclusion		\$	
_		POLICY PRO- JECT OMOBILE LIABILITY	LOC		H08815501				COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident)	\$	1,000,000
		ANY AUTO			H08815513 (Owned)		1/30/2013	11/30/2014	BODILY INJURY (Per person)	\$	
в	x	ALL OWNED AUTOS							BODILY INJURY (Per accident PROPERTY DAMAGE	\$	
	x	HIRED AUTOS							(Per accident)	s	
	x	NON-OWNED AUTOS							Uninsured motorist combined	5	
_							1 /20/2013	11/30/2014	Underinsured motorist	s	7,000,00
A	х	UMBRELLA LIAB	OCCUR		PH1303923	ľ	11/30/2013	11/20/2014	ENGILOGOGIUCEITOE	5	7,000,00
		EXCESS LIAB X	CLAIMS-MADE						AGGREGATE	5	
		DEDUCTIBLE	LAN ARAS							\$	
		NAME AND ADDRESS OF AD	,000,000		C47875201		11/30/2013	11/30/2014	Y WC STATU- OTH	+-	
С	AN	RKERS COMPENSATION D EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY	Y/N		CT TO TO TO TO				E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	\$	1,000,00
	OF	PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EX	EGUTIVE	N/A					E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOY	EE \$	1,000,00
	(Ma If ye	indatory in NH) es, describe under SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS	halma						E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	r s	1,000,00
A		ofessional Liab			PH1303923(SIR)		11/30/2013	3 11/30/2014	A CONTRACTOR OF		
									\$4,000,000 Policy limit		
DES	CRIP	TION OF OPERATIONS / LOG ficate is issued ny (EBIA) its sub	ATIONS/VEHIC as evidenc sidiaries,	off:	Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remar insurance per the pol icials and employees a er the written agreeme ons. The general liab	and the	Board of	Education	lishility insurance	10 DC	olicy per t
		FICATE HOLDER				CAN	CELLATIO	N			
		East Bay Inno 3400 Malcolm	Avenue	cade	emy (EBIA)	ACO	EXPIRATIO	ON DATE TI WITH THE POL	DESCRIBED POLICIES BE HEREOF, NOTICE WILL JCY PROVISIONS.	BE	CELLED BEFORE DELIVERED IN
		Oakland, CA	94605				بار به و	COT.	Christophen &	d	mgan
						C In	gelsby/0				
	205	25 (2009/09)					©	1988-2009 A	CORD CORPORATION	I. All	rights reserve

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD Powered by BoardOnTrack

COMMENTS/REMARKS

be primary and non-contributory with any coverage held by LEA, its subsidiaries, officials, and employees for any losses occurring within the \$3,000,000 self-insured retention. The commercial automobile liability insurance is primary and non-contributory per the terms and conditions of the contractual liability provision of the policy. Agent/Broker will mail 10 days written notice to the certificate holder should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration date. The gneral liability policy includes coverage for sexual abuse and molestation according to the policy terms ans conditions.

COPYRIGHT 2000, AMS SERVICES INC.